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Anci . . Due to the Republic of Yemen'’s official transition from a Thursday
cient practice continues —Friday weekend to a Friday -Saturday schedule, beginning

to offer pOpular medical this week, the Yemen Times’ Monday issue will now come out on
alternative Tuesdays.
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Think Smatrt... Turn to the

Bedouin brides: Yemen’s Summer Tourism Festival kicked off on Sunday in Sana’a’s Al-Sabeen Park, drawing crowds from
all over the country to partake in the two-week event. Designed to celebrate Yemen'’s diverse regions and cultural heritage, booths full
of clothes, songs and dances are on display, including the one from the northern governorate of Marib pictured above.

Following years of debate and hesitation, Yemen’s
official weekend change stirs controversy

Economists praise the
change’s financial po-
tential—others dispute
motives

Samar Al-Ariqi

SANA’A, Aug. 19—For about five
years, the Yemeni government has
been talking about changing Ye-
men’s weekend from a Thursday
to Friday to a Friday-Saturday
schedule. A potential logistical
nightmare and a reluctance to an-
ger those critical of a homogenized
global schedule caused lawmakers
to hold off on making the switch.
But in June, the Ministry of Civil
Service officially announced that

the southern Arabian Peninsula
country would be aligning itself
with Saudi Arabia and swapping its
Thursday for Saturday. Last Satur-
day the decision went into affect
and Yemen entered its first week
on the new schedule. The decision
has been met with various oppo-
nents who question the move.

For Mostafa Nasr, the head of
the Studies and Economic Media
Center, the change is only positive.

“It was supposed to be approved
much earlier,” he said. “I don’t
know why the government waited
so long.”

Nasr thinks bankers will be the
first to appreciate the convenience
of having a weekend in line with
neighboring countries.

“For banks [it’s better] because

of the correspondence between in-
ternational and Yemeni banks [can
now be the same day],”

For some, the advantages of the
change aren’t just economic but
also a symbol of Yemen’s growing
diplomatic ties with the rest of the
world.

“It’s natural for Arab countries
to strengthen their relations and
follow [each others’] systems—
including those of [western na-
tions],” political analyst Dr. Fadhl
Al-Rabie said.

That is precisely why some are
opposed to the change. They say
Yemen is conforming to globaliza-
tion and it compromises the coun-
try’s unique culture and distinct-
ness.

“[The government] pretends that

President Hadi negotiates with Southern
Movement to resume NDC participation

Mohammed Al-Hassani

SANA’A, Aug. 19—Discussions to
resume participation of the South-
ern Movement and southern repre-
sentatives of other parties in the Na-
tional Dialogue Conference (NDC)
are ongoing between President Abdu
Rabu Mansour Hadi and leaders of
the major Southern Movement fac-
tion, the Southern People’s Confer-
ence (SPC). Southerners suspended
their participation in the NDC last
Tuesday to protest the ‘slow’ resolu-
tion of the Southern Issue.

SPC member and Deputy Presi-
dent of the NDC Yasin Makkawi met
with Hadi to convey a message from
Mohammed Ali Ahmed, the lead-
er of the Southern Issue Working
Group, detailing the terms which
would persuade the SPC to resume

their participation.

Ahmed issued a statement that
has been widely circulated in the
press, explaining his position and
demanding that the dialogue lo-
cation be moved abroad and that
Southerners and Northerners par-
ticipate as equals. Other demands
in the statement related to security
and administrative issues in' south-
ern governorates.

Southern Movement leader and
NDC representative Dr. Ahmed Al-
Sulmani told the Yemen Times that
President Hadi has been involved
in intense discussions over the past
days to bring the southerners back
to the dialogue.

“The NDC hasn’t provided any
tangible solutions to the Southern
Issue [so] far,” Al-Sulmani said. The
movement will not accept the out-

come of the conference if it reaches
decisions without the participation
of Southerners, he said.

NDC Deputy Secretary General
Yasser Al-Ro’ini said Hadi ordered
the ministerial committee assigned
to carry out the 31 Points to specify a
deadline for the implementation of
the document. The 31 Points are a
list of demands put forth by south-
ern leaders.

The Southern Issue, Al-Ro’ini
said, can only be resolved through
NDC reconciliatory outcomes, add-
ing that “President Hadi won’t rec-
ognize any conditions beyond this
choice.”

The NDC working groups were
scheduled to submit their latest re-
ports on Sunday but submission
was delayed because of the South-
ern leaders’ boycott.

the decision was approved because
of economic motives,” said Dr.
Taha Al-Mutawakel, the imam of
the Al-Hashoosh mosque in Sana’a.
“[But] if they're really keen on Ye-
men’s economy, they shouldn’t im-
pose this weekend on other sectors
like education, health, judiciary
and security.”

Some have made the argument
that the new weekend violates re-
ligious doctrines, but most, like
Dr. Nasr Al-Salami, a professor of
comparative fiq’h (Islamic  juris-
prudence) at Al-Eman University
in Sana’a, said the new weekend
has no conflicts with sharia law.

“It’s a matter irrelevant of reli-
gion,” he said. “The government’s
purpose is clear, and there is no
need for speculation.”
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Due to the Republic of Yemen’s official TS
transition from a Thursday —Friday weekend
to a Friday —Saturday schedule, beginning
this week, the Yemen Times’ Monday issue
will now come out on Tuesdays.
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12 still missing, 17 family members die in Nakhla flooding

Nasser Al-Sakkaf

TAIZ, Aug. 19—Locals are still
searching for 12 people who are
believed to have been swept away
in severe flooding in the Nakhla
Valley of Taiz on Friday after area
roads were compromised by heavy
rain.

They were a part of a wedding
convey that was overcome by ris-
ing waters on the road, officials
said. Seventeen people, who were
also a part of the wedding, died
as the result of the flooding and
have already been buried, Taiz in-
formation assistant, Abubakr Al-

Ezi, said. Although, the number of
dead could be higher as estimates
are still being confirmed locally.

The 17 that were buried all be-
longed to the same family and
were participating in a wedding
procession to bring the bride from
her home in Ibb governorate to the
groom in Taiz, Al-Ezi said.

Six people from the wedding
party were rescued during the
flooding by locals at the scene.
They are being treated at the Al-
Madina hospital in the Al-Odain
district in Ibb, said Rashad Mu-
freh, the general secretary of the of
the Al-Odain local council. Presi-

trict and several
houses and farms
were damaged on
Saturday

on Saturday

dent Abdu Rabu Mansour Hadi
said the victims will be treated at
the expense of the state.

Locals have complained to Mu-
freh about the lack of civil defense
rescue responses in the area, he
said.

“Only one ambulance and five
state rescue personnel came to
help the locals,” Murfeh said.

The area is known for flooding,
but residents typically are very
cautious, suggesting that the wed-
ding convoy was out of their ele-
ment, Al-Ezi said.

Recent heavy rains have led to
flooding all over the country. On

AMRAN

Saturday. A dam
located in the
Hamda area of the
Raida district also
collapsed the same
day, destroying
nearby agricul-
tural fields

Saturday

SHABWA

of Shabwa on

Saturday, military forces rescued
three soldiers and three civilians
trapped in flooded areas in the
Ahwr area of Abyan governorate,
said Ahmed Qaed, a security offi-
cer of Brigade 90 at Al-Anad Air-
base.

Two planes at Al-Anad Airbase
have been assigned for disas-
ter evacuations for the past six
months, Qaed added.

When asked why the planes were
not used for other rescue missions
like the one in the Nahkla Valley,
Qaed said, the planes are not able
to fit into narrow areas, although
much flooding takes place in rural

Dawran district
of Dhamar on
Saturday

during a wed-
ding procession
in the Nakhla

areas with tough terrain.

Three children were also re-
ported to have died in flooding
in Rghwan, Marib on Friday, the
head of the Civil Defense Author-
ity, Adulkareem Me’iad, said.

Me’iad has defended the Author-
ity’s response to such incidents,
saying their work is made difficult
by a lack of cooperation and com-
munication on the part of officials
in governorates.

As many as 40 people have
died in floods during the past two
weeks, according to Me’iad. Dam-
age to homes and property has also
been extensive, he added.

flooding in
Rghwan on Friday

Valley, most of
them women and
children

(Source: The Media Center at the Interior Ministry)

Political instability means more
violations against judiciary,
human rights report says

Many violations go unreported,
judges afraid of appearing
‘weak’

Mohammed Al-Hassani

SANA’A, Aug. 19—A human rights
report issued by a local organization
at the beginning of August revealed
that 59 violations have taken place
so far this year against judiciary staff,
including judges, prosecutors, law-
yers and administrators in relation to
their work.

The report, issued by the Esnaad
Center for Empowering an Inde-
pendent Judiciary and Rule of Law,
states that judges, lawyers and ad-
ministrators have faced nine mur-
der attempts, two kidnappings, five
physical injuries and 19 other threats
of varying degrees of seriousness this
vear.

The report also documented seven
armed attacks on judges’ homes, sev-
en attacks on their vehicles and eight
separate attacks on courts through-
out Yemen. A majority of perpetra-
tors behind the attacks are still at
large.

The head of the Esnaad Center

Faisal Al-Majidi said the report is
based on available judicial docu-
ments, statistics from the Ministry of
Justice and media reports.

However, Al-Majidi realizes the re-
port has its limitations.

“Figures in the report don’t repre-
sent all abuses and violations com-
mitted against judicial employees
nationwide,” he said. “Several viola-
tions are not reported, particularly in
remote areas where media and hu-
man rights organizations are largely
absent.”

Many judges have said they are,
hesitant to report attacks and viola-
tions because they fear they will ap-
pear weak.

In line with mounting instability
all over the nation, Al-Majidi says
violations against the judiciary will
continue as long as there is a com-
promised central state that cannot
protect civilians or state workers.

A local judge and former minis-
ter of the Mmistry of Endowment,
Hamoud Al-Hitar, said he and fellow
judges constantly feel like they are
under threat.

“When I was the head of the Court
for Appeals in Sana’a, I received
death threats,” Al-Hitar said.

“The judiciary will never earn

Tribal dispute leads to kidnappings, killings

Security committee to step
in, remove armed tribesmen
from mountains

Nasser Al-Sakkaf

IBB, Aug. 19—Ibb governorate will
send a security committee to me-
diate a tribal dispute in Al-Radma
district that began in July between
the Houthi Al-Seraji tribe and the
Salafi Da’an tribe.

Ibb Security Chief Fuad Al-Atab
told the Yemen Times that the con-
flict between the two tribes began
when a group associated with the
Al-Seraji tribe set-up a checkpeint
at the entrance of the district and
prevented armed men from the
Da’an tribe from entering.

prestige or independence if the state
is unable to protect its judges,” he
added.

The Yemeni Judicial Forum media
officer, Redhwan Al-Omisi told the
Yemen Times that he believes the re-
cently released report to be valuable
and accurate of the circumstances
judges face.

Al-Omisi expects violations to in-
crease in the absence of a government
authority taking them seriously.

MPHP shutters the doors of seven
private hospitals in Sana’a

TR B ﬁ/

Facilities found in violation of
basic health codes

Ali Ibrahim Al-Moshki

SANA'A, Aug. 19—The Ministry
of Public Health and Population
(MPHP) announced on Monday at
a press conference that it would be
closing seven private hospitals out
in the capital city out of Sana’a’s
62 health private health facilities
including clinics. The closings are
a result of a government evalua-
tion campaign that began in April
to assess facilities’ compliance with
health standards.

“The hospitals were found lacking
in health work basics in addition to
the lack of medical services, a lack of
specialized staff and their buildings
are inadequate,” said Dr. Ahmed Al-
Ansi, the Minister of Public Health
and Population.

The minister said they are focus-
ing on Sana’a at the moment but
similar evaluation and monitoring
campaigns are also underway in
Hajja, Dhamar and Ibb governor-
ates.

Even though a majority of private
hospitals are allowed to remain in
operation, Dr. Yahia Al-Ghasali,
the general manager of the private
health facilities at the ministry said
only eight hospitals were techni-
cally up to health code standards.

YT Archive pholo by Ashraf Al-Muragaf

The MPHP has threatened to shut down an additional 38

private heath facilities in Sana’a unless improvements are

made.

Nine other hospitals met 80 percent
of requirements and were given a
three-month grace period to bring
their facilities up to health code
standards. The remaining health
facilities are under threat of closure,
Al-Ghasali said.

The technical aspects of shut-
ting down the hospitals will be the
responsibility of the capital secre-
tariat.

Pharmacies in Sana’a are also be-
ing evaluated, Ahmed Al-Qubati, the
Central Inspection Coordinator at
the ministry said. Only an estimated
50 percent of pharmacies have been
examined.

“[So far] the inspection campaign
[has] found 1,463 violations ranging
from a lack of licensing to smug-
gled, expired and forged drugs,” Al-
Qubati said.

Salafis, a conservative Muslim
sect, and Houthis, a group of Zaidi
Shiites, are both prominent in the
Al-Radma district, according to Ali
Al-Zalam, the deputy of Ibb gov-
ernorate. Ibb’s governor and the
head of the Security Committee,
Ahmed Abdulla Al-Hajri, met with
Ibb representatives on Sunday to
discuss bringing the conflict to an
end.

Two people associated with the
Al-Seraji tribe and one person af-
filiated with the Da’an tribe were
killed last week in armed clashes
between the two tribes.

“We arrested folks from both
tribes in July in order to de-esca-
late the conflict, but it was of no
use. We've (now] decided to send
in security forces,” Al-Atab said.

Armed men of both tribes have

been stationed in the mountains of
Al-Radma since the dispute began.

“The security committee will
head to the district in the next two
days and evacuate the gunmen of
both tribes from the mountains
and regain control of these sites,”
Al-Zalam said.

Once gunmen are removed the
mountains, discussions will be
had and a solution will be reached
through tribal arbitration or Sha-
ria law, Al-Salam said. The conflict
will likely be resolved by tribal ar-
bitration, according to Al-Zalam.

Thirteen people affiliated with
the Al-Seraji tribe were kidnapped
by the Da’an tribe last week when
returning from Sa’ada governorate,
Al-Zalam stated. Da’an tribesmen
have accused the Al-Seraji tribe of
kidnapping two Da’an men.

Yemen Oil Company’s negotiat-
ing committee announced on
Sunday that 18 international oil
companies won contracts to op-
erate in 20 land and marine oil
fields.

Eighteen companies were se-
lected out of a pool of 45 interna-
tional companies that competed.
Oil companies had to meet cer-
tain conditions including a solid
environmental and safety re-
cord.

HODEIDA IBB DHAMAR TAIZ MARIB Oil Exploration and Produc-
Three people died  Two people diedin  Two women died A person died in A female child Seventeen people Three children tion Authority head Abdulkar-
in the Meghlaf dis-  Al-Odain district in Amran on the Baihn district died in the died on Friday died in heavy cem Chailan said the 18 compa-

nies have submitted documents
outlining their work for the past
two years. Documents include
financial reports and audits as
well as technical reports explain-
ing the work of each company in
the field. R.A.

An earthquake measuring 3 on
the Richter Scale hit the north-
ern area of Al-Dale’ governorate
Sunday evening, affecting sever-
al of the governorate’s northern
districts.

No casualties were reported,
but the incident did inflict panic
said Ismail Al-Hitwar, secretary
to governor of Al-Dale. R.A.

A soldier detonated a grenade in
the middle of the popular Habra
Market in the Shaoub district
of Sana'a in mid afternoon on
Monday, killing himself but
causing no other casualties, secu-
rity officials said. Dr. Abdul Aziz
Al-Qadasi, the security deputy
manager in the capital city, said
it is believed the soldier suffered
from emotional issues. A.A.

VACANCY ADVERTISEMENT

Given the rise in frequency and impact of natural disasters, the focus of the international community is
shifting to disaster risk prevention and preparedness. The World Bank is seeking to recruit a Disaster Risk
Management Specialist as Extended-Term Consultant for one year initially.

Job Description and Accountabilities:

+  Provide daily operational support to the Disaster Risk Management and the Climate Change Bank Task
Teams

+  Lead the implementation of selected components of the Yemen DRM Country Program

«  Articulate next phase of the Yemen Global Facility for Disaster Reduction and Recovery Country Program
2013-2015 and start its execution

+  Provide close and direct support to clients on the preparation of proposal and the implementation of technical
assistance in regards to disaster risk management.

+  Ensure familiarity with the Bank’s portfolio in Yemen from a field based perspective

«  Write quarterly progress and constraints reports to be uploaded into the Grant Result Management System,
as well as the Result Based Management System-RBMS

+  Assist the World Bank Task Team perform Damage and Loss Assessment (DALA) training as well as assist
perform Post Disaster Needs Assessment (PDNA) if and when disaster strike

«  Contribute to GFDRR’s Knowledge management system by preparing quarterly briefs and case studies, and
providing the necessary inputs for the knowledge products developed for the donors and clients

«  Upon the request of the World Bank Task Teams participate in preparation and implementation-support mis-
sions for the PPCR

+  Review and assess the progress made on the PPCR program, by working closely with the PPCR Program
Coordination Unit (PPCR PCU) as needed

«  Review the PPCR implementation plan prepared by the project and provide support as requested to achieve
the set milestones. Review technical documentation and material prepared by the DRM and PPCR and
prepare a list of comments to be shared with the Task Team

«  Provide guidance to the Task Team on any technical issues arising from the implementation of the DRM and
PPCR programs that require action on part of the Team

Desired Skills/Competencies:

+  An advanced university degree in International Development, International Relations, or another relevant
discipline with a focus on Disaster/Humanitarian Issues and at least 6 years of professional experience

«  Deep knowledge of Yemen DRM program and experience working in the country are essential

+  Highly developed communication and advocacy skills, including the ability to write concisely and clearly, and
to present complex arguments in a clear and persuasive manner

«  Demonstrated ability to work in international multidisciplinary environment with clear focus on key business/
operational outputs and under tight deadlines

+  Proven creativity, resourcefulness, integrity and strong interpersonal skills, including client orientation

+  Experience in working in a context of fragility, conflict and violence, including polarization of state-society
relations, diminished client capacity, relevance of partnerships, etc.

+  Acandidate should be fully proficient in written and verbal English and Arabic

Interested candidates should apply via the World Bank site www.worldbank.org/jobs section: “employment
opportunities” job number 131908, where you can find full particulars on the vacancy. Closing date for this
job is August 28, 2013. Only short-listed candidates will be contacted.
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Colorful influences from Pakistan
One woman hopes a clothing trend will bring a pay day

Story and photos by
Samar Qaed

pend a day window-

shopping or attend a

Yemeni wedding and

you'll spot a significant

amount of Indian and
Pakistani influence in dress fabrics
and design. Pakistani national Ri-
fat Fatima Rahmani is a teacher at
the Pakistan School, but is increas-
ingly dabbling in sales of Paki-
stani clothes, accessories, shoes
and bags. The demand for such
products is huge, she says, and she
hopes to open a boutique soon if
the demand continues.

With ambitious goals, Rahmani’s
sales have humble beginnings. The
30-year-old, who came to Yemen in
1994 with her family, held her first
exhibit in her home recently. The
halls of her house were filled with
Pakistani clothes and accessories,
as well as Yemeni friends check-
ing out the display. She was unsure
how the exhibit would go and how
well the products would sell.

To Rahmani’s delight, she sold
nearly her entire line of products

Women who att

In a trial run, budding entrepreneur and Pakistani-native, Rifat Fatima Rahmani, may have
found a growing market for products from her home country.

during that first exhibition. She
and her four daughters served bev-
erages and answered questions as
women tried on traditional Paki-
stani clothing, including embroi-

ended Rahmani’s exhibition walked away with

what they call, high-quality and fashionable clothing and acces-
sories from an interesting part of the world.

dered dresses coupled with trou-
sers.

“Yemeni women have a liking for
Indian and Pakistani embroideries
and styles,” Rahmani said.

Thirty-five women attended the
exhibition. After nearly selling out,
Rahmani has decided to continue
with this line of work.

“I noted what was most in de-
mand by visitors, and I will bring
an abundance of those items with
me next time,” she said.

One customer, Zahra Hassn,
spent YR15,000, about $70, at the
exhibition.

“The prices are reasonable and
traditional Pakistani clothing is
known for its quality. My favorite
products were the crystal-studded
bags,” Hassn said.

Alia Mosleh is froin Aden and
says the exhibit satisfied her nos-
talgia for Indo-Pakistani culture,

which has a large influence in the
southern city. A strategic coastal
port, Aden attracted many Indi-
an sailors and traders as early as
the 17th century, many of whom
settled down and never left. The
Indo-Pakistani influence extends
beyond clothing though and ex-
tends to food and incense.

Mosleh walked away from the
exhibition with silver bracelets,
but had a difficult time choosing
amongst all that was available.

This encourages Rahmani.

“If this [line of business] contin-
ues to be successful and profitable

in the coming months, I will open’

the first Pakistani shop in Yemen,”
she said.

Weddings in Yemen are often
several days long, and increasing-
ly, brides spend one of those days
dressed in a traditional Indian or
Pakistani dress. Saba Ahmed’s

Box 2002, Sanaa, Yemen
Emnail: sanaa@Qsi.org
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wedding is approaching and like
many other modern Yemeni brides,
she is greeting guests during one of
the wedding days in a sari, a style
of dress where a piece of cloth is
loosely draped over the body.

As Rahmani prepares for her
second exhibition—to be held in
the coming months—she prepares
to import a large number of hand-
bags, bracelets and shoes, which
were big sellers at the first exhibit.

Rahmani is hopeful that word of
her sales will spread through cur-
rent customers.

“Those who [have] visited my ex-
hibition will let others know. I have
Yemeni friends who not only buy,
but also promote my products,” she
said.

Rahmani remembers the day of
the exhibition fondly, and hopes it
is an indication of the level of inter-
est in Pakistani clothes and acces-
sories to come.

“I did not expect to sell such an
amount—now I'm waiting for an-
other shipment. I hope to one day
realize my dream of opening a
shop,” she said.

www.proton.com

gl 511 60 gl cilginn 3 dilaun <
ailuall 3SIyag bl alad dilain <
Lilgd ogaig yulia dapndi <

> Three years guarantee or 60 thousand km

» Guarantee for providing spare parts and
maintenance centers
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“[President] Hadi has done
nothing for Yemen, except to
let American planes kill people
whose guilt is not known.”

— School teacher Majida al-Maqtari told

Reuters in response to the U.S. drone campaign in
Yemen.

“My team and I have been in
regular contact with Yemeni
ministers and officials, and
we are glad to be back and
working in Yemen after this
brief hiatus.”

— The British Ambassador, Jane Marriott, on
the reopening of the British Embassy on Aug. 18.

“We know of several violations
committed against judicial
staff that weren't reported.”

— Yemeni Judicial Forum media officer
Redhwan al-Omisi on the difficulty of

accurately tracking abuse directed at judicial
workers.

“Yemeni women have a liking
for Indian and Pakistani
embroideries and styles.”
— Sana’a resident Rifat Fatima Rahmani on

why she thinks opening a Pakistani products store
will be successful in Yemen.

It’s time for some

Sara Al-Zawqari

or quite some time now, ev-

eryone has been thinking

for themselves, and serving

their own interests, such as

focusing on how to fill their
pockets or bank accounts with cash. As
for the interest of the country, it has
been put on a shelf that has been
abandoned for years.

Selfishness has consumed
some people. They act this way
under the slogan of “nation-
alism” and “unity,” which
has caused many extrem-
ist opinions to emerge.

I want to talk about the
term “unity.” It seems we
misunderstand this word.
Unity doesn’t mean we all share
the same views, have the same
opinion or seek the same political or
ideological goals. These differences
are what make us special. One of the
most interesting things about us is our
personal differences. Unity doesn’t
ask us to forget our differences.

They say, “let’s become one hand,”
“let’s work as one,” but if you look at
your hand, you'll see each finger dif-
fers in height and width. If our fin-
gers were identical, we wouldn’t be
able to use them the same way we
do. This means we can have differ-
ences and be united at the same
time.

In order to perpetuate corrup-
tion and oppressive rules in any na-
tion, one must take away the freedom
to voice opinions. But don’t expect
people to conform without entering a
hopeless war. Oppression leads to es-
calating disputes, increasing hatred

wodououg

s
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Sana’a Zubairi Street
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real unity

and more tension. Even if an agreement
is reached by one group completely
complying with another’s policies, the
agreement’s lifespan is usually short.
The concept of uniting the country in
1990 was a beautiful thing, the nation
built hopes and dreams after the uni-
fication of Yemen. Many provinces
celebrated the move. For many
years the South has been ne-
glected, but it wasn’t “unity”
that caused that. Instead, it
was caused by the people
in power who failed to
act appropriately. Others
abused their authority for
their own interests and
disregarded that of others.
Injustice, oppression and
wrong doings have affected
many people, especially in the
South. But, instead of blaming
the unification of the country,
individuals should be held ac-
countable.
The problem is not in the dish,
it comes from the chef and the
spectators who control the tem-
perature of the dish from out-
side the country, which com-
plicates the situation further
still. Unfortunately, we have
allowed others to interfere
in our domestic affairs, which
has caused more damage than
good. People in the South weren't
tyrannized alone. Injustice has
spread all over Yemen from the east
to the west. The country is filled with
oppressed people whether in Aden,

S’ ama¥r 91 —..[—) Fi ,’ Hadramout, Hodeida, Ibb, Taiz or even

Sana’a. Yemen has paid in blood for its
land.

Alliances and political parties

shouldn’t be enforced on others. If a
person disagrees with your views, or
criticizes your party, that doesn’t give
you the right to oppress, exploit or kill
him. Killing has become as easy as
drinking water.

We need to accept one another re-
gardless of our political and religious
ideologies. We must also learn to coex-
ist and focus on personal relationships
instead of political and religious divi-
sions. Every person is free to choose
their political affiliation without sacri-
ficing relationships or creating hatred.

Our loyalty should be directed at our
country, not at individuals. Individu-
als make mistakes and they make lots
of them. A person who really loves an-
other, will criticize those he loves when
they make mistakes because they want
them to improve. Following a person’s
religious doctrine, even when they do
wrong is neither loyalty nor love. Use
your own brain and sense of logic. If
something makes sense then follow it,
and if you think something is wrong,
avoid it. You have a brain, use it. We are
people and not sheep who blindly fol-
low a shepherd. Forget about emotional
talk and focus on logic.

If we want the country to flourish, we
need new blood to take over. Enough
with putting people’s faces on signs,
boards and stickers. Those need to
be replaced with the Yemeni map. If
we prioritize our country’s interests,
we will be able to move forward and
achieve the impossible.

Hear more of Shahi Haleeb weekdays
on Radio Yemen Times, aired 2:00—
3:00 p.m. and 10:00—11:00 p.m.,
Saturday through Thursday. Tune your
dial to 88.8 and thanks for listening!

| School
A5 A llal) A jaall

NQW Open for Registration!

The First Malaysian School, a leading English medium school in
Sanaa is happy to open its doors for student registration for academic

year 2013-2014.

The school is located on Al-Salami Road near Haddah post office,
and boasts a number of highly qualified teaching staff, a large suitable
premises, and fully equipped classrooms and labs.

The school is open to students from Nursery
and girls.

to grade 9 for both boys

For inquiries please contact the school administration at the following

e-mail address:

firstmalaysian.school@gmail.com

or call the

following numbers for further information :
733494093.

427440, 711267762 or
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO H.E. THE MINISTER OF FINANCE
OF NATIONAL BANK OF YEMEN
Aden, Republic of Yemen

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Bank of Yemen (the Bank),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and instructions issued by Central
Bank of Yemen, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are frec from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to
the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of National Bank of Yemen as at December 31, 2012, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and instructions issued by Central Bank of Yemen.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2011, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unqualified audit opinion on those statements on May 2, 2012.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained from management the information and clarifications that we deemed necessary
for our audit. The Bank keeps proper books of account, and the accompanying financial
statements are in agreement with these books. We are not aware of any violations of Yemen
Commercial Companies Law No. 22 of 1997 and its amendments, the Public Companies,
Establishment and Corporation Law No. 35 of 1991 and Banking Law No. 38 of 1998 having
occurred during the year which might have had a material effect on the financial statements as at
December 31, 2012.

[

M. Zohdi Mejanni -
Associated Accountani. .

\
Sana’a, June 9, 2013

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

2012 2011

ASSETS Note YR 000s YR 000s
Cash on hand and reserve balances with

Central Bank of Yemen (CBY) 7 9,508,477 7,811,174
Due from banks 8 27,896,311 23,068,091
Treasury bills — held to maturity 9 76,835,274 63,844,593
Loans and advances (net) 10 8,853,256 6,252,715
Available-for-sale investments 13 306,577 333,756
Debit balances and other assets (net) 14 1,037,274 439,720
Property and equipment (net) 16 2,695.688 2,713,339
TOTAL ASSETS 127,132,857 104,463,388

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
h -HANG b J continue:
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012
Revall f
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY “Propery
Paid-up Legal General Surplus Fair Value  Proposed Cash  Retain
il Reene  Reewe  Reene  Roewr  Dwieds Ewmns Toul
LIABILITIES vear 1011 _YROOs  _YRO00s  _YROO0s  __ YRO000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 0005 YR 0005
Due to banks 17 431,196 423,360 o
Customers’ deposits 18 106,301,560 86,274,925 |Blwenstimay],200 10000000 __2.168.485 683863 639.762 62 - . 13554762
Credit balances and other liabilities 19 3,261,728 3,308,930 |Toml compraheasive ncome fok'the year
Other provisions 20 325,671 139,434 | Netprofit for the year
Total Liabilities 110.320.155 90, 236\649 qrher comprehensive income
Net change in fair value reserve s .
EQUITY Total comprehensive income for the year s s
Paid-up capital 21-a 10,000,000 10,000,000 | Transactions with owners, recorded
Legal reserve 21-b 2,890,480 2,499,084 |y e —_—
General reserve 21-c 1,405,858 1,014,462 | Transfer to general reserve .
) Government share in profit
Revaluation of property surplus reserve 21-d 639,762 639,762 | empioyess’ share in profit
Fair value reserve 2l-e 50,090 73,431 | Total transactions with owners e 330599
;:::75:1;1 ::sh_ :gns/ldends 1,826,512 - Balance a5 at December 31, 201 00000 249908
n rni = £
Total Equity 16,812,702 14,226.739
The attached notes on pages 8 to 47 are an integral part of these {inancial statements
Independent auditor” rt is set out 1 2
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 127,132,857 46338 i HOEAeport i se out o pages | and '
2y =
; Cipees . 4 - = R ,
Contingent liabilities and commitments (net) 22 24,436,706 _ 17,308,405 Mohamed Abdulla Mugbil Alamery Crumniea A]ﬁi Alsagaf |\ /
Chairman General Manager \
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
& FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
" 2012 2011
Mohamed Abdulla Mugbil Alamery hmed Alawi Alsagaf Note YR 000s YR 000s
Chairman General Manager Cash fows from operating activities
Net profit for the year before income tax +3,213,091 2,754,993
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flows from
operating activities
Depreciation of property and equipment 16 142,057 133,389
Provisions provided during the year 28 778,051 2,119,576
R differences of p in foreign currencies 8.530 ( 3,037)
Retr difference of lable-fc I (reversed) ( 1,998 -
Provisi d 2 510 6
TOVISIONS reverset 7 ( 1,441,910) 1,317,566)
Reversal of of available-for-sale 27 ¢ o) v :
Provisions used during the year ( 430,749) ( 24,299)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Net o on isossls ofprpeny and cqipment " 4758
,0ss on retranslation differences (unrcalize 32
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities used in operating
activities 2,266,907 3,674,824
Not Y;O(;éo Y}zloégﬂ Net (increase) decrease in assets
ote S S Due from banks maturing after three months ( 2,148,998) 1,757,476
Reserve balances with the Central Bank of Yemen ( 1,390,498) 3,591,259
. Treasury bills maturity after three months ( 8,785.463) ( 10,582,011)
Interest income 23 16,519,869 14,698,097 Loans and advances ( 1,708.779) 1,067,610
Less: interest expenses 24 (_11.152.734) (__9,447.007) Debit balances and other assets ( 585,598) 179,310
Net interest income 5,367,135 5,251,090 ot lnorsiss tdeccsase) in Hiabilitia
’ Net increase (decrease) in liabilities
Due to banks 7,836 131,823
Commissions’ revenues and banking service gus‘;on;)crls‘ depnﬂ;s il '9"5?7';???) ( 5-;23{2?
t balances and other liabilitics ( 3 3
charges 25 624,569 535,955 income tax
i . 5 paid ( 521,136) ( 418,969)
Less: Commissions expenses and banking service Net cash from (used in) operating activities 6751517 (___5461.897)
P!
charges ) ) ( 13,593) ( 2]’025) Cash flows from investing activities
Income from available for sale investments 39,563 32,373 Cash payments for acquisition of property and equipment ( 124,406} ( 126,765)
Gain on foreign currency transactions 26 17,884 88,575 Decrease (increase) in available-for-sale i 388,538 ( 10,000)
Other income 27 1.501.269 1.403.161 :rowcds from investments ) L 5372 -
. . ——a Net cash from (used in) investing activities 269,504 (___136765)
Net operating income 7,536,827 7,290,129
5% Government share (cash dividends) (_ 1,542.796)
Less: Provisions 28 ( 778,051) ( 2,119,576) Net cash (used in) financing activities ( 1,542,796)
Less: General and administrative expenses, and ek N “ — ( o~
N e et change in cash and cash equivalenis P 3 » W49
deP’ eciation 29 ( 3,545 685) ( 2415 560) Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 60,951,774 68,094,478
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash held 133811 ( 1,246)
NET PROFIT OF THE YEAR BEFORE Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 68,106,606 60.951,774
INCOME TAX 3,21 3,091 2,754993 Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year consist of:
Cash on hand and reserve balances with CBY 7 9,508,477 7,811,174
5 o Due from banks 8 27,896,311 23,068,091
Less: income tax for the year 192 ( 603,787) ( 550,999) Treasury bills - held to maturity (net) 9 76.835.274 63.844.593
114,240,062 94,723,858
8 > Less: Reserve balances with CBY ( 7,841,083) ( 6,438,550)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAX 2.609.304 2.203.994 Less: Duc from banks due after three months ( 4,344,056) ( 2,170,680)
Less: Treasury bills due after 3 months (net) ( 33948317) ( 25.162.854)
Other comprehensive income S5
Net change in fair value ( 25,104) 10,779 —th106.500 = 1
Gain on revaluation of available for sale The attached notes on pages 8 10 47 are an integral part of these financial statements
investments (during the year) 3,761 _ Independent auditor’s report is set out on pages | and 2. /‘4
Revaluation differences of available for sale e
investments (reversed) ( 1.998) - _ 7 _ ., =
z N =<
Total other comprehensive income ( 23.341) 10,779 Mohamed Abdulla Mugbil Alamery -~ “Bsam Ahmed Alawi Alsagaf
Chairman General Manager
Total comprehensive income for the year _2,585963 _ 2214773
\
\
Earnings per share 30 YR 261 YR 220 \
N N .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
A X - The National Bank of Yemen (the Bank) was incorporated in Aden in 1969. It is wholly
Mohamed Abdulla Mugbil Alamg am Ahmed Alawi Alsagaf owned by the Government of Yemen and is registered under Commercial Registration
Chairman neral Manager No. 1748.
- The Bank undertakes all banking activities and carries out banking retail activity in the
Republic of Yemen through its head office in Aden and 27 branches spread all over the
Governorates of the Republic of Yemen.
2. PREPARATION BASIS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 2.]  Statement of compliance
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
- The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and instructions issued by the Central Bank
Revaluation of of Yemen (CBY).
Property
Pclld-up Legal General Surplus Fair Value  Proposed Cash  Retained - In deviation from International Financial Reporting Standards, and to apply the
apital Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Dividends Earnings Total provisions of local laws and regulations issued by CBY, the followings are treated
YR 000s. YR (005 YR 000s YR 0005 YR 000s. YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s 5 '
Year 2012 — as follows:
Balance as at January 1. 2012 —10,000.000 2499084 1014462 639762 13431 a. The adoption of minimum fixed percentages for loan provisions in
p P g p
Total comprehensive income for the year accordance with Central Bank of Yemen circular No. 6 of 1996 and No. 5
Net profit for the year R of 1998,
Other comprebeasive income b. The recording of provision for general risks calculated on performing loans
Net change :n fair value reserve - . . ( 23,341 - « il s
—_—— —— —aMsy - 23341 under “loans provision” and not under equity,
Total compreheasive income for the year ( 23.341) 0 2,609.304 2.585.963
Tiissictions Witk cwsers: vecurded A c. The recording of provision for contingent liabilities under “other
directly in equity rovisions” and not under equity.
p q
Transfer to legal reserve {proposed) 391,396 - ( 391.396)
ér:ncs’!::r(;%i;:mll;e::r\;f‘((pmwwz)) - 391,396 ( 39139) The effect of these deviations is immaterial on the financial statements of the
vemm 52 in profit (propose B 1
e o (o Bank as at December 31, 2012
Total transactions with owners —_— 391396 39139 . 1826512 (__2.609,304) - - The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
Balasce as at December 31, 2012 10,000,000 290,480 405,858 9762 50090 __ 182631 1631200 June 9, 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortized costs are measured as the

2.2 Basis of measurements
3 Available-for-sale investments
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for Availibieforsale tnvesmisats wie nan-derivative avestmients that difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset a.n<.i the present
available—for—sale investment and also land and buildings which are stated in property are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as another value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
and equipment and are measured at fair value. category of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities are carried at interest rate. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of comprehensive
23 Functional and presentation currency cost less impairment, and all other available-for-sale investments are income and reflected in an allowance account against loans and advances to
) carried at fair value. customers.
T;‘; ﬁngnc;(al 5‘:“3‘]’?5"‘!5 are Present‘ejd(;nt Y&mcm Rials, Wh’hCh 1s tzeiu“m?“;l. clurrency Interest income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive For listed investments, a decline in the market value by 20% from cost or more, or
of the:bank;and a1l valucsiarcirounded;to ihe nearestone:tousanc xement Xial except income using the effective interest method. Dividend income is for a continuous period of 9 months or more, are considered to be indicators of
when otherwise indicated. recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the bank impairment
24 Significant — ts and esti becomes entitled to the dividend. Foreign exchange gains or losses
: ignificant accounling juagments and estimates on available-for-sale debt security investments are recognized in the Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognized by
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to statement of comprehensive income. transferring the cumulative loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting Other fair value changes are recognized in other comprehensive income to income statement as a reclassification adjustment. The cumulative loss
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual income until the investment is sold or impaired, whereupon the that is reclassified from other comprehensive income to income statement is the
result may differ from these estimates. cumulative gains and losses previously recognized in other difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of amortization, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and comprehensive income as a reclassification adjustment. recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Changes in impairment
: g estim g P gn ; ; P P2
in any future periods affected. A non-derivative financial asset is reclassified from the available-for- provisions attributable to time value are reflected as a component of interest
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in sale ];a’tlcgory to l:hed l;)'ar?s' andfrleceival:jles cgtegbt?ry ifdi"f(’:‘eg’isi 1ncome;
: . s fomi wou ave met the definition of loan and receivables and 1f t an . ogr : : : .
applying accounting policies that have the most significant cffect on the amounts had the i . o hold i y e In subsequent periods, the appreciation of fair value of an impaired available-for-
recognized in the financial statements are described in notes 5, 11, 13, 16 and 20. ad the intention and ability to hold that financial asset for the e e ded in fair val
foreseeable future or until maturity. sale investment securities is recorded in fair value reserves.
The judgments, estimates and assumptions applied by the Bank are presented in these .
financial statements as follows: Financial liabilities 3.3 Revenue recognition
a.  Provision for impairment of assets The Bank has classified and measured its financial liabilities at amortized - Interest income and expenses for all interest bearing financial instruments are
Tiis Btk exercines, judgrosot in the, estimation of provision for impaiment of cost. recognized in the statemgnt of comprehensive income using thg he-ffect_lve interest
assets. The methodology for the estimation of the provision is provided in the D s rate methgd except fgr interest on non?performmg credit facilities, in order to
impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets (if any) which is shown in ¢ erecognition comply with the requirements of CBY circular No. 6 of 1996, the Bank does not
the significant accounting policies below. Fi ial asset d ized when th tractual rights related to th accrue interest on non-performing loans and advances. When an account is
inancial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights related to the . ; :
i impail ; i L . : e e 5 n-perft llect to the three
b.  Provision for impairment of available-for-sale investments financial instruments have expired which ordinarily coincide with the sale treatte: a3 not P torm_m.g IS;H’I all uncoll cf‘? interest relatm% fo . .
The Bank exercises judgment to consider impairment on available-for-sale or transfer of the contractual right to receive cash flows related to the asset oS p;mr do N egonzmg ¢ loan as non-pe or,mmg 15;teyersed from. IMCom
investments. This includes determination of significant or prolonged decline in to an independent party. and transferred to other credit balances as suspense interest.
;&:efag;/;’lf: 3’56‘0:;;:5%55;5}[.rtnyalfr:nsgh;h: J;{dgmlem’d g‘f fa“t'; e‘éa;:itzz a“,":“g - ial liabiliti g ized when th et ot T il The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
T N Ht 1 re price. in aadiion, the nsigers inanciat It Hies are derecognized when ey extinguishe , that 1s when . v 5 4
the impairment is appropriate when there is objective evidence of deterioration in the contractual obligation is discharged, canceled or expired. caSh 'payments and lecelptg through the exP?Cted life of the.ﬁnancml asset; or
the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in hab‘ht}’ (or, Whe“’. appropriate, a shorter.penod) to "h.e carrying amount of the
technology, and operating and financing cash flows. d Offsetting financial assets and liabilities financial asset or liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank
e Useful lives of property and equipment estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
: : ; Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the instrument, but not future credit losses.
The Bank uses estimates of useful lives of property and equipment for tatement of finaicial posit | h h A lepall £ ble righ o ) .
depreciating these assets. Z ;f;r:‘t;e i goerice af;m: 'g" 02 Zhw en 4 e.ret ‘St.a etga ytt(lm orces :ebng‘ Lo The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees
nis an ere 1S an intention to settie on a ne asis, or 2 . . . 3 s
: g L * % and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . to realize t.he asset and settle the liability sxmgltaneously. Income and expense is p p ' . gralp ) '
not offset in the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortized costs of

financial assets and financial liabilities and of allocating the interest income and
expenses over the relevant period.

- Income from held to maturity investment securities is recognized based on the
effective interest rate method.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented standard or interpretation.

in these financial statements.
3.1 Foreign currencies transaction €. Measurement prmcxples

- The Bank maintains its book of account in Yemeni Rial, which the Bank’s Financial assets are measured by amortized cost or fair value

functional currency. Transactions in other currencies are translated to the
respective functional currency during the financial year at the prevailing exchange
rates at the date of transaction. Balances of monetary assets and liabilities in other
currencies at the end of the financial year are translated at the prevailing exchange
rates at that date. Gains or losses resulting from translation are taken to the
statement of comprehensive income.

- Amortized cost measurement - Dividends income is recognized when the right to receive income is established.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the -
financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and
the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment loss. The
calculation of effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 34

In accordance with CBY instructions, the reversed provisions, no longer required
provisions, are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income under “other
operating income”.

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between . Corrfmxssxons’ revenussignd bank: service chmrges are recognized when thoirslased
amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for services are performed.
effective interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in the
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Provision of loans, advances and contingent liabilities

In order to comply with CBY circular No. 6 of 1996 and No. 5 of 1998 relating to
classification of assets and liabilities, provision is provided for specific loans, advances
and contingent liabilities, in addition to a percentage for general risks calculated on the
total of other loans, advances and contingent liabilities after deducting balances secured
by deposits and banks’ guarantees issued by foreign worthy banks. The provision is
determined based on periodical comprehensive reviews of the credit portfolio and
contingent liabilities. Accordingly, the provision is provided in accordance with the
following minimum rates:

- Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability
settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction on the measurement date.

The Bank measures the fair value of listed investments at the market closing

price for the investment. For unlisted investments, the Bank recognizes any
increase in the fair value, when they have reliable indicators to support such

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation of available-for-sale investments are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

- The Bank does not deal in forward contracts to cover its needs for foreign
currencies or foreign exchange contracts to cover the risks of settling its future

liabilities in foreign currencies. formi | d ad d
. . s o v Performing loans__an advances _an contingent
an increase. These reliable indicators are limited to the most recent Hahilites, iicluding watehlist aceannts 1%

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities

transactions for the specific investment or similar investments made in the i )
Non-performing loans and advances and contingent

a. Recognition and Initial Measurement
Th L . market on a commercial basis between desirous and informed parties who do BT
e Bank initially recognizes loan and advances to customers, due from or to R 5 P . liabilities:
banks, customers’ deposits and other borrowings on the date at which they are not have any reactions which might affect the price. Substandard debts 15%
originated. Also, other financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the f Identification and measurement of impairment Doubtful debts 45%
Bad debts 100%

statement of financial position when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument with other party. At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that

financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset(s), and that the loss event has a negative impact on the future cash flows of
the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant 35
financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a
borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank
would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other
observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the ik
payment status of the Bank’s borrowers or issuers, or economic conditions that :
correlate with defaults.

The Bank consider evidence of impairment loss for loans and advances to
customers and held-to-maturity investment securities at both a specific asset and
collective level. All individually significant loans and advances to customers and

held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All e TN oy e Eoanrited ;
individually significant loans and advances to customers and held-to-maturity el oty which areike witkp Cuse mouis drom s issuangs s

investment securities found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively 3.8  Property. equipment and depreciation
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans a.  Recognition and measurement
and advances to customers and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together loans and advances to customers and held-to-maturity investment
securities with similar risk characteristics.

Loans and advances are written off if procedures taken towards their collection prove
useless, or if directed by CBY examiners upon review of the portfolio by debiting the
provision. Proceeds from loans previously written off in prior years are credited to the
provision.

b. Classification
- Financial assets

At inception financial assets are classified in one of the following

categories: Loans and advances to customers and banks are presented on the statement of financial

1. Loans and receivables position net of provision and interest in suspense.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments, in which the Bank is a party, are presented off
financial position, net of any margins held from customers, under “contingent liabilities
and commitments” as they do not represent actual assets or liabilities'at financial

statements date.

Statement of cash flows

The Bank uses the indirect method to present cash flows, whereby net profit or loss is
adjusted with net cash flows from (used in) operating, investing and financing activities.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.

2. Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank has the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Treasury bills held to
maturity are considered part of these investments and are recorded at
face value and the balance of unearned discount is recorded under
credit balances and other liabilities. Treasury bills are presented in
the statement of financial position net of the balance of uneamed
discount outstanding at the financial statements date according to the
instructions of the Central Bank of Yemen.

3.7 Cash and cash equivalent

For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent
consist of cash balances, due from banks other than reserve balances, and treasury bills-

Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized initially at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, (land and buildings are measured at fair value).
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Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for their intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items, (major components) of property and
equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits arc expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property
and equipment, and is recognized net within “other income/expenses” in the
statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, any related
amount included in the revaluation surplus reserve is transferred to retained
earnings.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Bank, and its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment
are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value, if any.
Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a component has
useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.
Depreciation for property and equipment, except land, is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property and equipment. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated

Useful Lives

50 years

years of lease or estimated
useful life whichever is less

Buildings and constructions
Improvement to leasehold property

Furniture, fixtures and vaults 10 - 50 years
Motor vehicles S years
Computer equipment S years

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

On December 31, 1999, the Bank revalued the property and equipment by an
independent professional. The surplus resulting from the revalued had been
recorded under equity in the revaluation of property surplus reserve (Note no.
21.d).

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank reviews the carrying amounts of the assets, according to their materiality, at
each financial statements date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment, if any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-
generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from

continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group

of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

The Bank’s corporate assets that do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilized
by more than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and
consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the

corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rate basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets,
impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Other provisions

A provision is provided for present legal or constructive obligations as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation based on the study prepared by the Bank in order to estimate the amount

of the obligation.

Lease contracts

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. All the leases entered into by the Bank are operating
leases.  Rentals payable under these leases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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3.16

- 1AS 28 (2011) “Investment in Associates and jont ventures” has been amended to

- IFRS 9, Financial Instruments' is the first standard issued as part of a wider project to

- IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.
- IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements.
- IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities.

- IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement.

The Bank is currently assessing the impact of these standards on future periods.

Taxation

Corporate tax is calculated in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations in the
Republic of Yemen.

Due to the characteristics of the tax accounting in Yemen, application of International
Accounting Standard on Income Taxes does not usually result in deferred tax liabilities.
In the case that deferred tax assets have resulted from the application of this standard,
these assets are not booked unless there is assurance that these assets will be realized in

the near future.

Zakat due on equity

The Bank remits the Zakat due on equity to the relevant governmental authority which
decides on the allocation of the Zakat.

End of service benefits

- All the employees of the Bank are contributing to the social security scheme in
accordance with the Republic of Yemen’s Social Insurance Law No. (25) of 1991.
Payments are made to the Social Security General Corporation before the 10" day
of next month. The Bank’s contribution is charged to the statement of

comprehensive income.

The provisions of Social Insurance Law are applied to all employees of the Bank
concerning the end of service benefits.

Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are
approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the
date of statement of financial position are dealt as a separate disclosure.

In accordance with the provisions of the Public Corporations, Establishments and
Companies Law No. 35 of 1991, the annual profit after tax shall be allocated as follows:

- 15% to legal reserve;

- 15% to general reserve;

- 65% to the government for its share of profit;
- 2% to employee’s incentive; and

- 3% to employee’s social fund

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

year.

Comparatives

Except when standard or an interpretation permits or requires otherwise are reported or
disclosed with comparative information.

APPLICABLE NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET ADOPTED

For the avoidance of doubt, the following applicable new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations, which were issued by IASB before December 31, 2012 and are not yet in
effect, have not been early adopted.

- IAS 1 (amendment) ‘Presentation of items of other comprehensive income’ The
amendments to |AS 1 require that an entity present separately the items of other
comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 with an
option of early application.

include IFRS 5 applies to an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or
a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale; and on cessation of
significant influence or joint control, even if an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the entity does not remeasure the retained

interest.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013 and is
applied retrospectively.

replace 1AS 39. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and
establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets amortised cost and

fair value.

The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

The above standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND THEIR RELATED RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Financial instruments
a. The Bank’s financial instruments are represented in financial assets and liabilities.
Financial assets include cash balances, due from banks, treasury bills — held to
maturities, loans and advances to customers and other financial assets. Financial
liabilities include customers’ deposits, due to banks and other financial liabilties.
Also, financial instruments include rights and obligations stated in contingent
liabilities and commitments.
Note (3) to the financial statements includes significant accounting policies
applied for recording and measuring significant financial instruments and their
related revenues and expenses.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices on a regulated exchange at
the close of business on the year-end date. For financial assets where there is no
quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by reference
to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same.
Where it is not possible to arrive at a reliable estimate of the fair value, the
financial assets are carried at cost until sometime reliable measure of the fair

value is available.

Based on valuation bases of the Bank’s assets and liabilities stated in the notes to
the financial statements, the fair value of financial instruments does not differ
fundamentally from their book value at the financial statements date.

The following table provides a comparison by class of the carrying amount and
fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments that are carried in the financial
statements. The table does not include the fair values of non-financial asset and

non-financial liabilities.

2012 2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount Value amount value
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
Financial assets
Cash on hand and reserve
balances with CBY 9,508,477 9,508,477 7,811,174 7,811,174
Due from banks 27,896,311 27,896,311 23,068,091 23,068,091
Treasury bills — held to
maturity 76,835,274 76,835,274 63,844,593 63,844,593
Loans and advances (net) 8,853,256 8,853,256 6,252,715 6,252,715
Available for sale
investments 306,577 306,577 333,756 333,756
Financial liabilities
Due to banks 431,196 431,196 423,360 423,360
Customers’ deposits 106,301,560 106,301,560 86,274,925 86,274,925

Fair value hierarchy

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair values are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets.

Level 2: Fair values are based on inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets either directly (i.e. as price) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair values are based on inputs for assets that are not based on

observable market data.

The fair value for available-for-sale investments comprise YR 306,577 thousand
as at December 31, 2012 (as at December 31, 2011: YR 333,756 thousand) under
the level 3 category. There are no investments qualifying for levels | and 2 fair
value disclosures.

Financial instruments for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or having a term
maturity of less than three months, the carrying amounts approximate to their fair
value.

Risk management of financial instruments

Risk management frame work

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but it is managed through a process of
ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and
other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s
continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the
risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

Risk management structure

The Board of Director is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling
risks in addition to other parties which are responsible for risk management.

Risk measurement

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits
established by the Bank. These limits reflect the business strategy and market
environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is willing to
accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries

Information compiled from ali businesses is examined and processed in order to
analyze, control and identify early risks.

The Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (which include
interest rate risk and currency risk), operating risk and other risks.

Credit risk

Loans and credit facilities to customers and banks, current accounts and
deposits with banks and rights and obligations from others are considered as
financial assets exposed to credit risk. Credit risk represents the inability of
these parties to meet their obligations when they fall due. In order to
comply with CBY circular No. 10 of 1997 regarding to the credit risk
exposure, the Bank applies some procedures in order to properly manage its
credit risk. The following are examples of the procedures applied by the
Bank:

- Preparing credit studies on customers and banks before dealing with
them and determining their related credit risk rates.

- Obtaining sufficient collaterals to minimize the credit risk exposure
which may result from financial problems facing customers or banks.

- Following up and periodical reviews of customers and banks in order
to evaluate their financial positions, credit rating and the required
provision for non-performing loans.

- Distributing credit portfolio and balances with banks over diversified
sectors to minimize concentration of credit risk
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Exchange rate risk

Due to the nature of the Bank’s activity, the Bank deals in different foreign
currencies, hence it is exposed to exchange rate risk. In order to minimize
the exposure to exchange rate risk, the Bank is trying to maintain a
balanced foreign currencies position in compliance with CBY instructions

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the ¢.  Interest rate risk d.

components of the statement of financial position. The maximum exposure
is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation by the use of collateral
agreements:

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will
affect the value of some of the financial instruments. The Bank performs a
number of procedures to limit the effect of such risk to the minimal level as

follows:
2012 2011 and the requirements of CBY circular No. 6 of 1998 which specifies that
YR 000s YR 000s - Correlating interest rates on borrowing with interest rates on lending. individual foreign currency positions should not exceed 15% of the Bank’s
: - ideri i i renci ital and iti i
Cash on hand and reserve, balances with CBY Consndqmg_ the discount rates for different currencies when capital : reserves, and that tohe aggregate f)pen position for all foreign
(excluding cash on hand) 7 841.083 6.438.550 determining interest rates. currencies should not exceed 25% of the Bank’s capital and reserves.
Due from bank 27896311  23.068,091 - f‘f;‘k’)’.‘l‘?”“g the matching of maturity dates of financial assets and In order to comply with CBY circular No. 6 of 1998, the Bank regularly
Treasury bill - held to maturity 76,835,274 63,844,593 1aoilities. monitors its foreign currency positions and sells the excess funds in foreign
; Iency p g
Loans and advances (net) 8,853,256 6,252,715 The table below shows the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risks: currencies at the prevailing rates on the dates of sale.
Available for sale investments 306,577 333,756 ' The table below shows the Bank’s significant net to forei
. . w n S
Debit balances and other assets (excluding " cu]rerencies- © s RIS MISIINIEAIE Rel EXpIsTIcs 19 SoriEn
. 202 .
prepaid expenses) (net) 998.230 410,654 e From 3 Froms Non- Average interest rates
Less than months to months to Over interest Local Fareign 2012
122,730,731 100,348,359 Soants G ot Ty e or i Total Currency  Currency Sterling Saudi Other
% vk A ] " —YRO0Os ~ _YROOOs =~ _YRO0Os =~ _YROO0s = __ YROOOs YR 000s % % USS Dellars Pound Euro Rial currencies Total
Contingent liabilities and commitments 27.507.457 19.634.380 At ol s s e YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 0005 YRO00s YR O000s
with CBY & 1
o - - 9,508, 508,477 . . Asses 50,956,436 1,653,352 2,930,693 2,909,530 102420 58,552,431
Total credit risk exposure 150,238,188 119,982,739 ?;z;?mkshcid 0 maturit et 2664510 1,679,546 ot ;;2;;{[ 1975 067 Liitities ’
D - held & ity 42,886,957 12,800,580 21,147,737 > % 7 7 " 3 ¢
) . I/'\?:;:;’:fzd::'ccs (‘Z:')“cms 1587070 149,549 1379502 R . g;é:;: ig fg ., .63 :ld equity (49.929.047) {1.630,433) (2.937.779) (2.912.452) 68,805 (52.478,516)
] s . ai r salc inve s 3 . R 306,577 577 ) et cumrenc
T.hcv .fgllowm.g analysis of the Bank ﬁnancna_l assets and contingent Other assss net) 9421 i - Jem  wein : P oy
liabilities by industry sector, before and after taking into account collateral Total Assets SLSASS _LseMZ 2620085 _ ATLIN 9SS _2inss —L027389 22919 (2080 (2922 33615 1,073,915
held of other credit enhancements (risk concentration for maximum - . 2011
exposure to credit risk by industry sector) is as follows: s and Equiy oSSDiE Dy Euro S o
Demmast i s . . aL1% 3119 . . YR 000s YR 000 YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
i ,664,963 507,373 - 5 "
Credit balances and other liabilities 957,039 la6971 ‘8?2?125? - T ol s 025 Assets 40,619,648 1,573,870 2,003,373 2,641,444 207,536 47,045,871
2012 2011 Othee provisions 1,750,115 3,261,728 - s Liabilities
B griikiiia - - Zd . 325,671 420K
Gross Net Gross Net Equity _— - . 6812702 m];zxsz'%]z and equity (41,184,508)  (1,518419) 1972,611)  (2.438.888) (___238129)  (42,352,555)
Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum Total Liabilities and Equity J
= ty 49622004 9,69, 9,0 - Net cwrency
Exposure Exposure Exposure Exposure . — L —— — position (__564.860) 55451 30762 _ 202556  (_..30593)  (__306684)
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s st e sensiviy e —l2064651 5930385 __LIsLls _ ATV (28885285)
Cumuiative inters nsitivity 7995 4 . .
Government 89.974.322 ) 72,058,004 a umulative interest rate sensitvity gap 12064651 IL0A0J6 _25J4R1S0 _2BASSRS . Effect of change in fair value of currency
Finance 24,572,317 22,904,923 22,999,610 21,626,986 s .
Industry 991,340 991340 1297754 1207.754 i The table below mdlcate; the effect of a r‘easovnably possible movement of
General trade 3,874,353 3,874.353 1,983,245 1.983.245 . From 3 Fomé Nows e ——— the currency Fate against thc Y‘emem Riyal on the statement of
Contractors 195,607 195,607 265,030 265,030 Ta  tomt i I e ok Dy ol comprehensive income and equity, with all other variables held constant:
Consumer 2,124,562 2,124,562 1,334,062 1,334,062 YROOS VR0 v { o Y e
Oth 998,230 998,230 410,654 410654 | % S S S S A . & 4
crs 122730 7;1 37.089.015 100348 359 26.917.731 Cash on hand and reserve balances Change in Effect on Statement of
22, A ) , N 4 % s with CBY g . R ; | 5 Currency Comprehensive Income Effect on equity
) o Due from banks 15,009,650 1,582,090 588,590 p 5?“2 Z;géé ;,9': . 2 Currency Rate% 2012 2011 2012 2011
Contingent liabilities Tiessy il el oy BWELTY 0SS 144332 : S saus ne "' uss +2 20,547 11,297 16,438 9,038
N . . Lozns and advances 1,839,43¢ 14021 Y 3 : il 0 } s i ) i
and commitments 27.507.457 24,436,706 19.634.380  _17.308.405 Avalisbe for sale nvestments : WP e e e T o 775 Sterling Pound +2 458 1,109 367 887
Other assets (net) — 430 466 148 X e i i Euro +3 212 922 170 738
i 3,148,103 3153059 N
_150,238,188 55,525,721  Lli9 9 44226136 o rcs —— . Saudi Rial +2 58 4,051 47 3,240
. . s . ~BSB0 12408200 _le66107 2433021 _ 7180794 104463388 Other Currencies +2 672 612 538 489
The Bank manages concentration of risk by distributing the portfolio over - 3 ( 20567 (1297 ( 16438 (  9.038)
diversified economic sectors and geographical locations. Note no. 33 to the Liabilities and Equity Sterling Pound 2 ( ‘4s8)  ( 1109)  ( 367) ( 887)
financial statements shows the distribution of assets, liabilities, contingent Due to banks . ) _— i3m0 5""; i 3 E 2‘;; E ggf; E 'ZE’[; (< 3;33;
H B 3 . Customers” d 7, 507 B Casid i y . audi Rial - 5 4, >
liabilities apd commitments based on economic §ect0rs and Note »no.}4~ to e e s Tl 335;3:;‘8’5 B:Qéféﬁ ‘6‘1’32'2;3 Zf‘fﬁ'ﬁil wams 025 Other Currencies 2 ( 672) ( 612) 538) ¢ 489)
the financial statements shows the distribution of assets, liabilities, Onber provisions : . = R oy - : ) o o )
contingent liabilities and commitments based on geographical locations at Fa _ 14226739 14226739 Note 3_5 ,‘O t]'_'e, financial statcments indicates the mgmﬁcar'lt forcign
the financial statements date. Totel Lisbiites and Equity _OOLSS g —— — ; currencies’ positions at the financial statements date compared with the last
s Lo ear.
b Liquidity risk Interest rate sensitivity gap 15913570 __4,129306 150,948 2433023 (_22.626,847) : Y
Cumulative interest rate seasitivity 82 SIS0 20042876 . 20.193,824 266841 -

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its obligations e
when they fall due and other risks related to sufficient liquidity without
incurring losses on timely basis. To limit this risk, the Bank’s management
in addition to its core deposit base, manages assets with liquidity in mind
and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis and has
arranged diversified funding sources.

The Central Bank of Yemen circular No. 3 of 1997 requires that the
liquidity ratio be 25% as a minimum. The liquidity rate as at December 31,
2012 was 58% (as at December 31, 2011 was 67%).

The table below shows the maturity analysis for financial liabilities that
shows the remaining contractual maturities:

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss due to an event or
action causing failure of technology, process, infrastructure, personnel and
other risks having an operational risk impact. The Bank seeks to minimize
actual or potential losses from operational risks failure through a framework
of policies and procedures that identify, assess, control, manage and report
those risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access,
authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment
processes.

f. Other risks

Other risks to which the Bank is exposed are regulatory risk, legal risk, and
reputational risk. Regulatory risk is controlled through a framework of

Note no. 32 to the financial statements shows the average interest rates on assets and liabilities applied during this year compared with last year.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a possible and
reasonable change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.
The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income is the effect of
the assumed changes in interest rates on the net interest income for one
year, based on the floating rate of non-trading financial assets and financial
liabilities. The sensitivity of the equity is the net change in interest income
after deducting the income tax effect.

December 31, 2012

The effect of increase in interest rate 2%

i 2012 __ et T nsldvity ol compliance policies and procedures. Legal risk is managed through the
Due within Due within Due within umulative e er'c:t"n::)(;mc effective use of internal and external legal advisers. Reputational risk is
th three tosix  sixmonths D - (Sintement : :
'i; ree 315”‘ :”‘ nontis UEOVer Ftal Sluteir.es‘ltRél;lc Conllprehcr;sive P controlled through the regular examination of issues that are considered to
monis months ooncyear . oneyear g YR oo, ¢ % 00Ds ey ohequi have reputational repercussions for the Bank, with guidelines and policies
YR000s YR 000s YR 000s _ _YR 000s YR 00Q; | Curremev YR 000s YR 0005 YR 000s Yoo e per® s WELE P
Yemeni Rials 17,981,989 359,640 287,712 eing issued as appropriate.
Liabilities US Dollars 5,868,999 117,380 93,904
LABDIIIMIES Sterli 4
Due to banks 431,196 - - - 431,196| Jterling Pound e Ly 3953 | 6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Customers’ Other Currencies 657,424 13,148 10,519 T s Vs f the Bank® ital t that the Bank li
deposits 72,462,149 11,440,359 22,165,643 233,409 106,301,560 he primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies
: 2 v ) o with capital requirements which issued by the Central Bank of Yemen (CBY), the rules and
Credit balances The effect of decrease in interest rate 2% X : : X " o
and other Sensitivity of ratios established by the Basel committee on banking supervision and that the Bank maintains
Net Interest Income 3 : ; , i H 3 i
liabilities 2.103.367 790.650 367.711 - 3.261.728 Cumilative (Statement of strong credit ratings and excellently by capital ratios. The capnal. adequacy are monltOrf:d ona
Interest Rate Comprehensive quarterly basis by the management of the Bank employing techniques based on the guidelines
Sensitivity Gap Income) Sensitivity of equity ¥ } : . 7 s A 3 :
bl 4996712 12231,000 22,533,354 _ 223409 109,994,484| StITeer—— YR i YE000 th ”ggl;menwd — EBY o oo o ooy ith Thee re‘q:g::tsm:?rcr%a\t(‘oc?rlciglre:ow(lg
1 1es S, 1n oraer o com / C requir .
14996712 12231009 2253334 = Yemeni Rials 17,981,989 ( 359,640)  ( 287,712) 2;1997 on a quarterly basts, i or ply q
US Dollars 5,868,999 ( 117,380)  ( 93,904) .
Sterling Pound 332,004 ( 6,640)  ( 5.312) . . . . . ; :
— e 2011 T Euro ) 307,734 ( 6,155)  ( 4,924) The CBY requires cach bank in Yemen to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to the risk-
Duewithin  Duewithin  Due within OnerCurencies 657.424 ¢ 13,148) ¢ 10:319) weighted assets at or above the internationally agreed minimum of 8%. In addition, the Bank
thr(te; three t:;,m tsn( months  Due over Toal December 31,2011 is required to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to the customer deposits at or above
months months 0 oneyear  oneyear ota ) o 3 5%,
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s Thifeseoliatosm in Nt an 24
P Net Interest Income The capital adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with the guidelines of the Central Bank of
Liabilities ) 3 jommulative: éf::;’::e";sfvfc Yemen compares between the bank core and supplementary capital with risk weighted total
gue to banks 423,360 - - - 423,360 Sensitivity Gap Income) Sensitivity of eguity assets and liabilities at the financial statements date, is as follows:
ustomers’ Currency. YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
deposits 57,434,771 9,723,836 18,856,195 260,123 86,274,925 | Yemeni Rials 15,007,435 300,149 240,119 2012 2011
p rpe 1N
Credit balances US Doltars 4280378 85,608 68,486 YR Million YR Million_
Sterling Pound 325,582 6,512 5,209
and other Euro ) 174,963 3,499 2,799 Core capital 16,035 13,426
liabilities 2.909.964 162.486 326,480 - 3,398,930 | Other Currencies 405,466 8,109 6.487 Supplementary capital 229 100
Total The effect of decrease in interest rate 2% Total Capltal 16.264 13,526
g Sensitivity of . . .
liabilities 60,768,095 _ 9,886,322 19,182,675 260,123 90,097,215 Net Fatereit hdonie Risk-weighted assets and contingent liabilities and
'C'umulta,tziv: C(Smtcmhent gf commitments:
.. - nteres Aate omprenensive
In addition to the above, note no. 31 to the financial statements shows the Sensitivity Gap Tncome) Sensitivity of equity Total assets ‘ 11,445 11,586
maturity analysis of assets and liabilities and the net gap between them at Currency ¥R 000s Y1000 ¥H 000, ?0”11‘“51”‘ “?b}lh[(’jes and COTZm“m?mS bl 13.386 3,487
. Yemeni Rials 15,007,435 ( 300,149)  ( 240,119) otal risk weighted assets and contingent liabilities
the financial statements date. US Dollars 4280378 ( 85,608)  ( 68.486) R 24.831 15.073
Sterling Pound 325,582 ( 6,512) ( 5,209) * =
Euro 174,963 ( 3.499)  ( 2,799 : s
Other Currencies 405,466 ( 8,]09; ( 6,487% Capxtal adequac)‘ ratio 65.5% 89.7%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

The core capital consists of pad-up capital, reserves and retained earnings (after deducting
investment in any local bank or financial company, if any) while supplementary capital
consists of general provisions on performing debts with percentage 1% which should not

exceed more than 2% of risk weighted assets.

7. CASH AND RESERVE BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OF YEMEN

Cash on hand - local currency
Cash on hand - foreign currency

Mandatory reserve with CBY — local currency
Mandatory reserve with CBY - foreign currency

2012 2011
YR 000s YR 000s
551,407 621,525
1,115,987 751,099
1,667.394 1.372,624
5,238,311 4,077,984
2.602.772 2,360,566
7,841,083 6.438,550

_9.508477  _Z811.174

The mandatory reserve balances with CBY represent the minimum reserve requirements
against customers’ accounts in Yemeni Rial and foreign currencies (without interest). These

funds are not available for the Bank’s daily business.

8. DUE FROM BANKS

2012 2011
YR 000s YR 000s
Central Bank of Yemen
Current accounts — local currency 2,029,207 1,418,700
Current accounts — foreign currency 768,758 356.161
2,797,965 1,774,861
CBY certificates of deposits maturing within three
months 2,500,000 -
5,297,965 1,774,861
Local Banks
Current accounts — local currency 10,615 1,829
Time deposits — foreign currency 289,582 283,458
300.197 285,287
Foreign banks
Current accounts — foreign currency 3,600,468 4,111,071
Time deposits — foreign currency 18.697.681 16,896,872
22,298,149 21,007,943

—21.896311  _23,068,091

- Time deposits with local and foreign banks carry variable interest rates while current
accounts with Central Bank of Yemen, local and foreign banks do not carry any interest.

- The certificates of deposits carry an interest rate between 19.58% and 19.75% during the
year 2012. In accordance with the Central Bank of Yemen instructions, certificates of
deposits which mature within a period not exceeding three months are considered as a

part of cash and cash equivalents.

9.  TREASURY BILLS - HELD TO MATURITY

2012 2011

YR 000s YR 000s
Treasury bills maturing within 90 days 43,900,902 39,612,729
Treasury bills maturing within 180 days 13,485,360 11,400,350
Treasury bills maturing within 360 days 22.668.740 15,349,210
80,055,002 66,362,289
Less: Unearned discount balance (__3219.728) (__2,517.696)
_ 16835274  _63,844.593

The treasury bills carry an interest rate between 19.42% and 22.93% during the year 2012
(between 22.5% and 22.9% during the year 2011). In accordance with the Central Bank of
Yemen instructions, treasury bills which mature within a period not exceeding three months

are considered as part of cash and cash equivalents.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (NET)

a.  Loans and advances by type

2012 2011
Note YR 000s YR 000s
Overdraft 4,300,310 6,056,004
Loans to customers 8,769,091 5,026,163
L/Cs financing 26,005 66,786
13,095,406 11,148,953
Less:
Provision for loans and advances 11 ( 3,203,481) ( 4,077,766)
Uncollected interest 12 (__1,038.669) ( 818.472)
8853256  __ 6252715

- According to Article No. 85 of the Banks Law No. 38 of 1998, and Article No. 14
of the Income Tax Law No. 17 of 2010, all provisions made in compliance with
the Central Bank of Yemen instructions on loans, advances, and contingent

liabilities are exempt from income tax.

- Non-performing loans and advances classified as bad debts amounted to
YR 3,709,841 thousand as at December 31, 2012 after deducting uncollected
interest and balances secured by cash deposits (as at December 31, 2011:

YR 5,551,561 thousand) broken down as follows:

Substandard loans and advances
Doubtful loans and advances
Bad loans and advances

2012 2011
YR 000s YR 000s
502,343 328,144
198,372 729,428
3.009.126 4,493,989
3,709,841 5,551,561

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

b.  Loans and advances by industry 13.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
L l(’)ewn:r:hip Nao. of 2012 2011
rcentage 0.0 AL Z
5 Lowxsty 56 Note % chares  _YROOs_ _YRO00Os
verdraft Customers Financing Total v ThiichE s
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s ‘ ——E‘—’*for eion
Trade 4163778 4371314 26005 5,061,097 UBAC Curacac - Paris 088 45202 97,135 483,209
Industry 84,876 906,464 - 991,340 Alubaf Arab International
Service 51,656 9,155 60,811 - Bahrain 0.344 6,880 147,866 165,209
Finance - 134,796 134,796 Arab Financial Services
Individuals and others 2.847.362 2,847.362 Co. - Bahrain 0.167 10,000 10,745 22919
255746 671337
Total 4300310 8769001  ___ 26005 13,095,406
ii. Financing investments -
local
2011 Yemen Financial Services
Loans to e Co. - Yemen 10,000 3,107 66,766 66,428
Overdraft Customers Financing Total Yemen Mobile Co. for
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s Telecommunication 0.139 120,000 61,200 61,200
Trade 5968811 1,229,508 66786 7,265,105 A - 0 20,000 20,000
Industry §5,658 1,242,096 - 1,297,754 \ Al Tadhamon - s
Service 31,535 17,651 49,186 ‘ Microfinance - Yemen 1.00 100 1000 1000
Finance - 2l5,844 215,844 ‘ 148.966 148.628
Individuals and others - 2.321.064 _ 2321064
404,712 819,965
Total _6,056004 _ 5026163 66786 _11,148953 Less: Impairment losses 13a ( 98.135) (__ 486.209)
The amounts above are shown gross figures before subtracting the provision for loans —os77 . A3LIN
and advances and uncollected interest. - All available-for-sale investments are unquoted financial investments. Due to the
difficulty of obtaining a reliable estimate of fair value for these investments as there are
no quoted market prices and future cash flows are not determinable, these investments
11. PROVISION FOR LOANS AND ADVANCES (PERFORMING AND NON-PERFORMING) | are carried at cost. :
a.  Provision for loans and advances by type - The Bank recognized impairment on some of the available-for-sale investments because
the Bank did not receive any dividends from these investments during prior years and
2012 furthermore, no dividends are expected to be received in the coming years.
Specific General Total . . . . . . .
Note _YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s - All the 'a\/allabie-fmvsale investments are non-classified by any international ratings
comnanies.
Balance as at January 1, 2012 4,056,966 20,800 4,077,766
Revaluation differences of - .
provision in foreign currencies 5,253 20 5273 132 Impairment losses
Add: provided during the year 28 540,283 11,593 551,876 2012 2011
Less: used during the year (4221 - ( 42,211) Note YR 000s YR 000s
Less: provision reversed 27 (_1386.546) (__ 2677) (_ 1389.223) -
Balance at beginning of the year 486,209 486,209
Balance as at December 31, 2012 SIS 29736 _3.20348] Less: used during the year ( 388,538) -
Less: reversed during the year 27 ( 2,000) -
Revaluation differences — foreign
2011 currency 2,464
Specific General Total Balance at end of the year 98135 486,209
Note _ YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
Balance as at January 1, 2011 3,072,785 53,248 3,126,033 14. DEBIT BALANCES AND OTHER ASSETS (NET)
Revaluation differences of
provision in foreign currencies ( 2,160) - ( 2,160) 2012 2011
Add: provided during the year 28 2,086,747 5611 2,092,358 Note YR 000s YR 000s
Less: used during the year ( 24,299) s ( 24,299) ) - ﬂ N
Less: provisions reversed 27 (_1076.107) (__ 38.059) (__1.114.166) Prepaid expenses 39,044 29,066
Accrued interest 70,808 4,982
Balance as at December 31, 2011 4,056,966  _____20.800 4,077,766 Projects in process (advances) 320,305 200,404
Assets transferred to the Bank’s ownership 56,832 163,875
" Other debit balances 1,460,409 963.473
b. Provision for loans and advances by sector 1.947 398 1361.800
2012 Less: Provision for doubtful debts 15 (_910J24) (___922,080)
Corporate Consumer ~ .
Lending Lending Total -L037.274 — 439720
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
Balance as at January 1,2012 4,056,966 20,800 4,077,766 15.  PROVISIONS FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Revaluation differences of
provision in foreign currencies 5,253 20 5,273 2012 2011
Add: provided during the year 540,283 11,593 551,876 Note YR 000s YR 000s
Less: used during the year (42210 : (42210 Balance at beginning of the year 922,080 1,085,478
Less: provisions reversed (__1,386,546) ( 2677y (__1,389.223) Revaluation differences of provision
2 N in foreign currencies 47  ( 877)
Balance as at December 31, 2012 _ 3,173,745 29736  ___3,203.48] Adds provided during e year 28 2,660
Less: provisions reversed 27 ( 15.063) ( 162,521)
Corporate Conzsg:nler Balance at end of the year 910,124 922080
Lending Lending Total
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
16.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (NET)
Balance as at January 1, 2011 3,072,785 53,248 3,126,033
Revaluation differences of = 2012
prov“ion in foreign currencies ( 2,160) - ( 2,160) Buildings‘and Leasehold Furniture and Motor Computer
Add: provided during the year 2,086,747 5,611 2,092,358 Constructions  Improvements  Equipment Vehicles Equipment Total
Less: used during the year ( 24,299) - ( 24,299) _ YRO00s  __YRO0Os = _YRO000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
Less: provisions reversed (__1.076.107) ( 38,059) (__1.114,168) Lot
Balance as at December 31, 2011 __4,056,966 20,800 4,077,766 i;i?;?daf:gu,:?m:m . ]8231 216
Disposals dunné the _.vear ( <I 605) . . A
12. UNCOLLECTED INTEREST Balance as at December 31,2012 2410045 12095 __ 46243 ;36’q:b
2012 2011 Accumulated depreciation
YR 000s YR 000s Balance as at January 1,2012 137318 58,794 115,636
o - ~ Depreciation 25,864 9,111 bi%"‘
Balance at beginning of the year 818,472 730,250 Disposals ( 9 . ]
Provided during the year 476,201 531,354 Balance as at December 31,2012 6T 61905
Written off during the year ( 96,500)  ( 94,953) ——
Recovered during the year ( 170,563)  ( 110,541)
Revaluation differences of uncollected December 31,2012 249710 348 183807 19374 2,695,688
interest — foreign currencies 11,059  (__ 237.638) ) i
Balance at end of the year __ 1,038,669 ___ 818472
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. EOREHE VEARENDED DECEMATR 52,281 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012
11
Land,
2::31‘:5:1:;:5 lml!;bﬂoieehold . Flé;ni?urt and \;\'lolnr Computer 21. EQUITY
s rovements uipment ehicles Equipment Total
g YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 005 a.  Paidup capital 27. OTHER INCOME
\ - 2012 2011
ﬁfiﬂfncnasdﬁrf:"i::yla:()ll zz;;?zl;; m;;g 39;233 121,516 43%,452 3,404,891 As at December 31, 2012, the paid-up capital is YR 10 billion (as at December 31, 2011: Note YR 000s YR 000s
Disposals during the year ___25%) S G 1) . L L YR 10 billion) divided into 10 million shares of YR 1,000 par value according to the N
Balimceasat December 31, 0112382, U00R  _419% __DLSI6 __#SD1 352604 Board of Directors meeting held on April 15, 2007, Provisions reversed
Accumulated depreciation Provision for loans and advances 11 1,389,223 1,114,166
b.  Legal reserve isi i iabiliti 2 L
gi:{;?:“soz: January 1, 2011 ;ijdl‘«% 49,9?5 221,798 106,308 189,641 680,176 g grov?sfon ?0[‘ Song?é?rgelg?b]h“es ] (5) ?;gé’;‘ 129’5'7)?
Disposals e L 8'8’2 L g Rl - ¢ According to the provisions of the Banks Law no. 38 of 1998, 15% of the net profit for rovision for dou s 1 4; 1910 I ?l;‘;‘(’;é
Balance asat December 31,2011 __137318 _ 58704 __247665 __ 11563 __ 254150 813,565 the year is transferred to legal reserve until the reserve equals two times the paid-up et R
Net book value capital. The Bank can not use this reserve without the prior approval of the Central Reversal of impairment of available-for-
) Bank of Yemen. le investments 13.a 2000 -
December 31,2011 2244886 51278 1703 5 571113 saie 1n S . o
= el k. TR Other income 57.359 85,595
¢.  General reserve
17.  DUE TO BANKS N . _ ' _ 1,501,269 __1,403,161
2013 According to the provisions of the Public Corporations, Establishments and Companies
YIS:)OOs Y;OOIOIOs Law No. 35 of 1991, 15% of the net profit for the year is transferred to general reserve.
P e — - ] The balance of this reserve can be used for purposes approved by the Bank. 28 . PROVISIONS PROVIDED DURING THE YEAR
Foreign banks - current account — foreign currency 429,343 423,360 d Revaluation of property surplus reserve 2012 2011
dalis A - 4 Note _YRO000s YR 000s
This reserve represents the difference between the revalued amounts of the owned land 2ote
18. CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS and buildings and their book values as at December 31, 1999. Provisions for loan and advances
a. Customers’ deposits by type e Fair value reserve P(pe{f?rm;ngdandbrtlzll‘lt—g:gisrming) }; 555,2;8 2,0 2’,358
2012 2011 rovision for dou 2,660 -
YR 000s YR 000s Fair value reserve represents the revaluation profit and loss on the available-for-sale Other provisions 20 223,515 27218
Current accounts 20,057,323 15,601,786 financial investments as at December 31, 2012 with a positive fair value of YR 50,090 778.05] 2119.576
Time deposits 50,681,387 39,990,915 thousand (as at December 31, 2011: YR 73,431 thousand). ——hial — 219576
Saving accounts 31,869,851 27,688,854
Margins of LC’s and LG’s 3,070,751 2,325,975 : \ V
Other deposits 622,248 667.395 22.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (NET) 29. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND DEPRECIATION
106301560  __86,274,925 2012 2012 2011
Customers’ deposits as at December 31, 2012 include YR 6,081,547 thousand of margins Gr'oss . N.et Note YR 000s YR 000s
held for direct and indirect facilities (as at December 31, 2011: YR 2,632,309 thousand). Commitments Margin Held ~ Commitments — -
. P YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s Wages and salaries 2,395,127 1,503,153
i ustomers’ deposits by sector .
- S0 Letters of credit 13,602,996 ( 1995043) 11,607,953 Zakat expenses 200,000 165,000
YR 000s YR 000s Letters of guarantee 13,704,392 (  1,065,125) 12,639,267 Duties and taxes . 116,487 110,669
Others 200069 ( 10.583) 189.486 Depreciation of property and equipment 16 142,057 133,389
Public and mixed sectors 11,224,368 3,783,615 Training expenses 108.164 29531
Individuals 81,531,477 70,205,103 _ 21507457  (__3,070751)  _24,436,706 “;a‘ mgl tP ty and fue 697642 66‘586
Corporations 7,111,238 7,328,894 ater, electricity and fue ; ;
Others 6.434.477 4.957.313 2011 Travelling and transportation 60,149 36,697
G Net n ; 50, 7,626
2 ross s Maintenance and repairs 536 37,
- &0 30214225 Commitments Margin Held Commitments . P ) 5 1
Donations 59,427 27,463
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s ’ e
19. CREDIT BALANCES AND OTHER LIABILITIES === Rent 41,616 41,873
2012 2011 Letters of credit 7741794 ( 1,318,947) 6,422,847 Advertisement and publication 41,445 41,098
Note YR 000s YR 000s Letters of guarantee 1 185?22 E 99;;;22% 108?2822 Stationery and printing supplies 36,144 30,931
Income tax for the year 19.a 627,650 550,999 Others — Professional fees 24,801 22,721
Interest payable 1,511,613 1,262,853 10424780 1 9395075 17.308 405 Communications 23,835 19,147
Unclaimed balances* 197,903 204,883 .
Employees share in profit - 110,439 23. INTEREST INCOME Computer maintenance . 2,289 (21,72?
Accrued expenses 40,000 25,000 Write-off property and equipment - ,75
Other credit balances 884,562 1,244,756 Y}iOOIOZO YR2(()](; 3 Other expenses 173.966 142,183
s s
3,261,728 3,398,930 3,545,685 2,415,560
Interest on loans to customers
*Unclaimed balances represent balances from previous years which have not been claimed by Interest carned on loans and overdrafts 1,523,552 1’535’3 16 30. EARNING PER SHARE
the beneficiaries. Management regularly reviews the likelihood that these amounts will be Other interest 260 - 204 2012 2011
claimed, and based on the outcome of such review, the Bank considers the amount that 1,523,812 1,535,520 Net profit for the year (YR thousand) 2.609.304 2.203.994
should be transferred to the Ministry of Finance in accordance with the relevant Article No. Interest oi due feom banks Number of shares (by thousand) 10.000 10.000
N R T 5 L ; o)
79 of the Banks Law No. 38 of 1998. Interest on certificates of deposit with CBY 66,284 - Earning per share (YR) 261 220
19.a Income tax for the year Interest from deposits 104,479 116,583 31. MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2012 2011 Interest from current accounts 184 3,024 2012
YR 000s YR 000s T L15.607 Mlrve i@ memdte Dueivr
Balance at beginning of the year 550,999 418,969 Interest on treasury bills held to maturity 14,825.110 13.042,970 Descrintion Yr;(:)"O‘t::i Vnéoggg'ss Jeyer e Yo Y;tggll) .
Less: paid during the year ( 527,136) ( 402,899) ' 16.519.869 14.698.097 i
Add: provided during the year 603,787 550,999 preeevin N
Less: reversed during the year - ( 16,070) ba;ance;wikth CBY 2,223.477 - " i 73,523.f7]7
24. INTEREST EXPENSE ?;Zs;iym bair;l: —— 23,552,255 ,664,510 1,679,541 - 27,896,31
Balance at the end of the year 627,650 550999 maturity 42,886,957 12,800,580 21,147,737 . 76,835,274
2012 2011 Loans and advances (net) 1.587.070 149,549 3379.502 3,737,135 8853256
YR 000s YR 000s Available-for-sale
20. OTHER PROVISIONS investments .o - - 306,577 ) 30:3573
012 Interest on customers’ deposits Other assets 69.421 10,090 6360 _3.647.091 _ 3,732.962
Provision for Provision for Interest on time deposits 7,893,305 6,450,139 J2.604,150 13024730 26213193 620,803 122132857
N : i bilEbe an et
Contingent Contingent Interest on saving accounts 3,259,429 2.996.868 b ‘6':::'0“[’)‘;;:‘ equity 45115 ) ) ) p———
Liabilities Claims Total <y 72 Customers’ deposits 77,868,350 9,507,373 18,692,428 233,409 106,301,560
Description Note YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s 11,152,734 447,007 Other liabilities and cquity 957,039 186,971 367711 18,888,380 20,400,101
" _— 79256,585  _9,694344 19,060,139 19,121,789 127,132,857
Balance as at January 1, 2012 78,973 60,4 4 5 Net (_1.652.405) _5.930.385 2153.006  (11.430.986) o
Add: provided during the year 28 223,515 - 223,515 25. COMMISSIONS’ REVENUES AND BANKING SERVICE CHARGES 1,652,405 930,385 3 = -
Revaluation differences of . p 2012 2011 " 2011 i
provision in foreign currencics 166 18 34 YR 000s YR 000s Due within ue from  Due from six
. T o o) 27 6 s three three to six months to Due over
Less: provisions reversed 27 ( 37.624) ( 37.624) o . s a7 o5 656 wiowilis e otlis one year one year —_—
Balance as at December 31, 2012 265.030 60641 325,671 gommsgggs 2;1 ::gzz g? zgzci:rsme 1é4,931 129,078 - Dtescrlgtmn YR 000's YR 000's YRO00's _YRO00's  _YRO000's
Ommissions ” 4 g a. Assets
2011 Commissions on transfer of funds 23,236 25,458 ol — ) ) ) —
Provision for ~ Provision for Other banking service charges 290.927 315,763 Due from banks 20,897,411 1,582,090 588,590 : 23,068,091
Contingent Contingent Treasury bills — held to . - N
e . 3 35 maturity 38,681,739 10,725,533 14,437,321 3 63,844,593
Liabilities Claims Total 624,569 233,959 Loans and advances (net) 1,839,433 140,210 1,830,048 2,433,024 6,252,715
Descri Qlion Note YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s Available-for-sale
investments - - - 333,756 333,756
Balance as at January 1, 2011 92,634 60,461 153,095 26. GAIN ON FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS Other assets 4342 466 148 3,148,103 3,153,059
Add: provided during the year 28 27,218 - 27,218 2012 2011 69,234,099 12,448,299 16.866.107 5,914,883 104,463,388
Less: provisions reversed 27 ( 40,879) - ( 40.879) b. Liabilities and equity
YR 000s YR 000s Due to banks 423,360 : . - 423,360
Balance as at December 31, 2011 78,973 60,461 139,434 . . . Customers’ deposits 57,434,771 9,723,836 18,856,195 260,123 86,274,925
(Loss) from translation of foreign currencies ( 15,906) ( 51,621) Other liabilities and equity 773,387 162,486 326480 16502250 17,765,103
Provision for general risk on contingent liabilities is calculated at 1% on the total contingent Gain from dealing in foreign currencies 58,632,018 9,886,322  _19,182,675 16762373 104,463,388
liabilities after deducting balances secured by deposits and guarantees issued by high credit transactions 33,790 140,196 Net 10,602,081 2,561,977 (_2,316,568) (10,847,490) -
rated banks. 17884 88.575
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32. INTEREST RATES APPLIED DURING THE YEAR
The interest rates on assets and liabilities during the year compared to last year were as
follows:
Year ended December 31, 2012
Saudi Sterling
YR USs Riyal Pound EUR
Assets
Loans and advances to
customers:
- Facilities 26.38 7.63
Due from banks:
- Certificates of deposits 19.75 - - - -
- Time deposits - 0.67 0.33 0.78 0.03
Treasury bills - held to
maturity 2022
Liabilities
Customers’ deposits:
- Time deposits 19.50 0.25 0.25 0.25 025
- Savings accounts 19.50 0.25 0.25 025 0.25
Year ended December 31, 2011
Saudi Sterling
YR Us$ Riyal Pound EUR
Assets
Loans and advances to
customers:
- Facilities 23.00 7.75
Due from banks:
- Certificates of deposits - - - - .
- Time deposits 1.35 [.58 0.93 50
Treasury bills - held to
maturity 22.62
Liabilities
Customers’ deposits:
- Time deposits 20.00 0.25 0.25 025 0.25
- Savings accounts 20.00 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
33. DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS BASED ON ECONOMIC SECTORS
2012
Individuals
Industrial  Agriculture Trading Service Finance & others Total
YR 000s YR 000 YRO00s YR 000s YR 000s YRO00s  _YRO000s
Assets
Cash on hand
and reserve
balance with
CBY 9,508,477 9,508,477
Due from banks 27,896,311 27,896,311
Treasury bills 76,835,274 76,835,274
Loans and
advances (net) 6,517,907 1915 13218 2,320,216 8,853,256
Available for sale
investments 306,577 306,577
Liabilities
Due to banks 431,196 431,196
Customers
deposits 5.879,958 233,606 13,835,922 2,945,532 1,847,717 81,558,825 106,301,560
Contingent
liabilities and
commitments
(net) 3,426,129 869,968 13,367,728 3,789,252 2,819 2980810 24.436,706
2011
Individuals
Industrial  Agriculture Trading Service Finance & others Total
YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
Assets
Cash on hand
and reserve
balance with
CBY 7,811,174 7,811,174
Due from banks 23,068,091 23,068,091
Treasury bills 63,844,593 63,844,593
Loans and
advances (net) 4,318,340 12,700 34,658 1,887,017 6,252,715
Available for sale
investments 333,756 333,756
Liabilities
Due to banks 423,360 423,360
Customers
deposits 1,225,127 202,342 7,291,900 2,646,943 1,717,338 73,191,275 86,274,925
Contingent
liabilities and
commitments
(net) 2,258,006 30,000 12,895,315 84,752 1,382,232 658,100 17,308,405
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35.

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS BASED ON GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS

2012
Republic of
Yemen  America  Europe Asia Africa Total
YR 000s YR000s  YRO00s YR 000s YR 000s YR 000s
Assets
Cash on hand and reserve
balances with CBY 9,508,477 - - - 9,508,477
Due from banks 5,598,162 13,128,907 8,837,284 331,958 27,896,311
Treasury bills - held to
maturity 76,835,274 76,835,274
Loans and advances
{net) 8,853,256 8,853,256
Available for sale
investments 147,966 158,611 306,577
Due to Banks 1,853 429,343 431,196
Customers deposits 106,301,560 - 106,301,560
Contingent liabilities
and commitments
(net) 5,161,769 215,879 7,658,168 9,956,538 1444352 24,436,706
2011
Republic of
Yemen America Europe Asia Africa Total
YR000s  YROGGs  YROOOs YR 000s YRO000s YRO00s
Assets
Cash on hand and reserve
balances with CBY 7811,174 - - 3 - 7811,174
Due from banks 2,040,109 1,854,071 12,719,583 6,335,921 118,407 23,068,091
Treasury bills held to
maturity 63,844,593 63,844,593
Loans and advances
(net) 6,252,715 6,252,715
Available for sale
investments 145,628 - - 188,128 333,756
Due to Banks - 423,360 423,360
Customers deposits 86,274,925 - 86,274,925
and commitments
(net) 3,433,150 208,028 5,639,612 6,734,746 1,292,869 17,308,405

SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN CURRENCIES POSITIONS

36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if the party has the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the Bank’s operating and financial decisions.

The Bank related parties are the members of the Board of Directors and companies owned by
them, as well as the Bank’s key management personnel.

The Bank deals with related parties on the same basis applied to third parties in accordance
with the Banks Law as implemented by CBY Circular No. 4 of 1999, which limits credit
transactions with related parties and requires that the Bank applies the same terms and
conditions that are applied with non-related parties. The following are the nature, related
balances and volume of these transactions at the financial statements date:

2012 2011
YR 000s YR 000s
Loans and advances (net) 2,553 4,895
Customers’ deposits 14,940 13,069
Interest received 24 80
Interest paid 899 826
Salaries and benefits 29,112 14,069

37, TAXSTATUS

The difference between accounting and tax profit for the year 2012 represents a
deducting amount of YR 194,156 thousand, as a result of adjusting the accounting profit
with the provisions provided during the vear and charged to the statement of
comprehensive income and provisions reversed which was previously subject to tax, as
well as the difference between the accounting depreciation expense and depreciation rate
and useful life in accordance with the Income Tax No. 17 of 2010, on the basis of 20%
tax rafe.

Corporate and salaries taxes have been cleared up to the year 2009, and the relevant
taxes were paid in accordance with the Tax Authority assessment.

The Bank has submitted the tax declaration for the year 2010, and paid the amount due
within the legal deadline. The Tax Authority has performed its review for the said year
and no assessment from the Tax Authority has been received yet by the Bank.

- The Bank has submitted the tax declaration for the year 2011, and paid the amount due
according to the declaration. The Tax Authority has not performed the review and the
Bank has not been notified of any assessment for the year 2011,

38, ZAKAT

The Bank submits its Zakat declaration annually and remits the amount due based on the
declaration.

The Bank has paid the Zakat up to the end of 2011 according to the Zakat declaration.
No assessment notification was issued by the Zakat Department.

To comply with the Central Bank of Yemen circular No. 6 of 1998, the Bank establishes limits
for each individual foreign currency position as well as aggregate limits for all currencies. The
limits for individual foreign currencies shall not exceed 15% of the total capital and reserves,
whereas the aggregate limit for all foreign currencies shall not exceed 25% of the total capital
and reserves. The following schedule reflects the Bank’s significant foreign currency positions
at the financial statements date:

December 31,2012 December 31, 2011

39. TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank does not hold nor manage assets for or on behalf of other parties except for the
housing project, which is managed on behalf of the Government.

Percentage of Percentage of
Surplus Capital and Surplus Capital and
(Deficit) Reserves (Deficit) Reserves
YR 000s % YR 000s %
US Dollars 1,027,389 6.84 (564,860) (4.00)
Sterling Pound 22919 0.15 55,451 041
Euro ( 2922) (0.04) 30,762 023
Saudi Rial (7,086 (0.01) 202,556 1.50
Others 33,615 0.21 (__30.593) (0.21)
Net surplus (deficit) 1,073915 115 (__306,684) (216)

40. CONTINGENT LIABILTIES
The Bank has filed a number of legal cases before the Public Fund Court and the Commercial
Court against third parties, and management has provided for the required provisions for these
cases. Also, there are legal cases filed against the Bank at the respective courts, and the
Bank’s management believes that there are no obligations on those cases except for the
provisions provided and stated in other provisions.

41,  COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures were reclassified to comply with current year’s financial
statements presentation. The reclassifications have no impact on the previously reported net

The US Dollar exchange rate as at December 31, 2012 was YR 214.89 (as at December
31,2011: YR 213.80).

profit or equity.
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VACANCIES

Yemen Times LLC Announces the following vacancies

Deputy Editor:-

The deputy editor-in-chief supports the editor-in-chief in managing the establishment’s
editorial department. Duties include but are not limited to the following:

X3

o

Implementing editorial policy and organizational plan

Contributing to the establishment’s media strategy

Monitoring editorial production efficiently and in a timely manner

Supervising the editorial department’s staff and encouraging their personal and professional
development

Managing the newsroom in coordination with other supervisors

Representing the organization locally and internationally

Contributing to editorial columns and other editorial productions

Maintaining Yemen Times values and principles while endorsing its organizational culture
based on a professional and free press, human rights, democracy, transparency and good
governance .

Implementing the organization’s general policy and promoting to both staff and outsiders
Reviewing the establishment’s quality control and improvement

Ensuring safety, progress, speed and quality of the establishment
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Required Qualifications:

Yemeni national

A master’s degree preferably in media or a related field

English fluency in writing, speaking, reading and comprehension

Computer literacy

A minimum of seven years of experience in print media

A minimum of three years experience in managing and supervising at least five people

A demonstrated leadership skills and an ability to work in a team under pressure and tight
deadlines

A demonstrated commitment to professionalism in media and a comprehensive understanding
of the risks and requirements associated with working in the media in Yemen
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 Deputy General }

The deputy general manager supports the general manager in running the entire
establishment. Duties include but are not limited to:

% Meeting the establishment’s advertising and circulation goals and objectives

% Preparing a marketing plan including pricing policy, that reflects advertising and circulation
price lists in coordination with the advertising manager to be reviewed by the CEO

% Assuring approved advertising, circulation and production budgets are apportioned and
followed in an efficient manner

% Issuing the annual timetable of commercial projects, advertising sections and supplements in

cooperation with the editor-in-chief and other editorial staff

Preparing business contracts for the business department and submitting drafts to the CEO

Supervising the performance of the advertising, circulation and marketing departments

In partnership with the financial manager, monitoring the documentation that analyzes

activities regarding production , advertising, circulation and marketing

Overseeing the development and application of a corporate identity design manual

Observing media market development and identifying significant changes for the CEO and

other associated colleagues

%  Acting as a proxy for the CEO during absences

% Maintaining relations with clients and suppliers

X3

*

0,
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Required qualifications:

< A minimum of five years experience in management, preferably in the private sector
% A comprehensive knowledge of Yemeni markets and environment

< A minimum of a bachelor’s degree in management or a relevant field

% Leadership, team work and communication skills

0,

% A demonstrated commitment to professionalism and demonstrated experience in achievement
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Candidates fulfilling the announced requirements must send their CVs with cover letters displaying why they are best candidates
_ for the job to email: ytrecruitment@gmail.com
Applications without a cover letter will not be accepted. Last date to accept applications is Saturday 31st August 2013.
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Social activism with a face

‘I can use puppets to teach children about citizenship and children’s rights’

Story and photos by
Samar Qaed

mmar Murshid has

learned the hard way

that human beings of-

ten disappoint and hurt

ach other. Despite his

young age, the 24-year-old has

been a certified civil society and

human rights trainer since 2009.

While he considers advocacy to be

his duty, puppets are his passion.

He uses the stuffed pieces of fabric

with glued and sewed-on faces as
an advocacy tool.

Murshid left for Beirut in 2010 to
learn more about civil society orga-
nizations. While there, he received
a month-long training with other
Arab youth on puppet making and
theatre.

Once back in Yemen, Murshid
trained a group of Muhamasheen
children, often referred to in Ye-
men as the Akhdam, or “servants.”
Murshid trained them in puppet
making. They went on to perform a
short and acclaimed puppet show.

“I feel like puppets can be used to
deliver messages to society. Since
[that first performance], I've been
using a puppet in all my lectures,”
Murshid said.

Puppets aren’t simply a source
of entertainment, he said, they can
have practical and very serious
uses. The puppeteer believes one
can assess the psychological state
of a child by observing what kind of
puppet they make. An abused child
may make a puppet with injuries
and bruises, Murshid said.

Ammar Murshid thinks there is a lot more to pup-
pets that meet the eye. He says psychologist can use
them as tools to better understand children.

“Psychologists can use puppets
to understand the psychological
and emotional states of children,”
he added.

Children find puppets to be a
more interesting learning tool than
projectors, the craftsman advo-
cates.

“I can use puppets to teach chil-
dren about citizenship and chil-
dren’s rights,” Murshid said. “Pup-
pets are..more interesting than
projectors, which children find
boring.”

If human beings are created in
the image of their maker, puppet
makers have some poetic license to
divulge from the template.

Murshid’s puppets
often have funny-
looking faces with
different-sized eyes.
He can make three
puppets in an hour.

“A skilled puppet
maker doesn’t need long time to
make a puppet,” he said.

Murshid has made dozens of pup-
petsin the past three years. There is
low-demand for puppets in Yemen,
he said, because Yemenis pay little
attention to theatre in general.”

“Unfortunately, interested youth
appear for a short time and then
disappear,” he said. “I have present-
ed several proposals to hold puppet

theatres in Yemen, but we lack suf-
ficient funds and qualified people
who can use puppets on stage.”

Though the Ministry of Culture
and civil society organizations have
showed little interest in his propos-
als, Murshid is determined to find
a sponsor and to hold a puppet
theatre. He hopes to train a team
specialized in puppet making and
script writing for the theatres.

“My plays will prioritize an adult
audience over an audience of chil-
dren because if you can convince
adults [of the im-
portance of pup-
pets], they will en-
courage children
to pay attention to
puppet theatre.”

He emphasized
that puppet the-
atre is not only for
children.

While Murshid
has succeeded in
the field of pup-
pet-training, he
regrets failing to
complete his stud-
ies. He’s attended
two universities
but had to drop out because of his
busy puppet schedule. He is now a
first-level student at the Mass Com-
munication College.

Murshid has several puppets in
his bedroom but his favorites are
Mused and Museda, based on two
actors who used to host a radio pro-
gram on Sana’a Radio.

“I like my puppets because we
talk and laugh together,” he said.

Sana’‘a British School
No.18. St. 21{off Nouakchott St.)
Telephone : {867-1) 203 850 - Fax : (967-1) 206 134
Email: administrator@sbsyemen.com
Website: www.sbsyemen.com

“These puppets are honest [and]
they don’t hurt anyone.”

His mother shares his passion for
puppets and often gives him ideas
for new ones.

She helped him to create a robe

and shawl for Mused and a scarf for
Museda.

“My mother likes making pup-
pets and she draws caricatures for
each puppet I make,” Murshid said.
“She inspires me.” '
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YOU ARE OUR GUEST

BE OUR GUEST

From 1 September, fly Etihad
Airways four times a week to
Abu Dhabi from only YER 93,200*

Etihad Airways, the World's Leading Airline*
brings you more of the world via Abu Dhabi.
Rediscover more of your favourite
destinations, including New York, Chicago,
London and Kuala Lumpur in comfort.

In Pearl Business Class, you're guaranteed

a fully-flat bed with direct aisle access on

all long-haul flights from Abu Dhabi. While

in Coral Economy Class, you'll enjoy over 650
hours of on-demand in-flight movies and

music.

Find out for yourself why we've been voted
the World's Leading Airline, four years in a row.

Find out more or book great fares by visiting
etihad.com, or call 01 442 725.

*Fare is for Coral Economy Class and includes all taxes
and fuel surcharges. Book by 15 September for travel

by 31 December, 2013.
**2012 World Travel Awards.
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that we have signed the contract until the day that we have supplied b AI GI b I
electricity. This is a record breaking power project. The government,

PEC and Altaaga Global has worked diligently together to deliver A OUt taaqa oba
electricity to the province of Aden.” He pointed out that “this power

P'adnt V\(/jill aII?r\:iate the zu;fe_rtif,]g of the citizens due to power outages A|taaqa Global, a Subsidiary of Saudi Arabia’s
and reduce the powerdeficit. ; ]
P Zahid Group, has been selected by Caterpillar
“With this new power plant, 95% of the workforce is local Yemeni en- Inc. to deliver multi-megawatt turnkey tempo-
gineer; and the remaining' 5% are frqm Alt.aaqa Global Caterpillar.” rary power solutions worldwide. The company
According to Steven Meyrick, Managing Director of Altaaga Global, . . . .
“We are committed to helping our immediate environs through a sus- owns, mObIIIZGS, installs, and operates efficient
tainable business model by creating employment opportunities in temporary independent power plants (IPP’s)
the areas where we operate. By hiring local talents in Yemen, we - : ;
are proud to serve the community and contribute to their social lives. at customer sites, focusmg.on the emerglng
We have also invested a significant amount of resources to train markets of Sub-Sahara Africa, Central Asia,
the Yemeni workforce to ensure that our operation is siill on its opti- the Indian Subcontinent, Latin America, South
mum level. In the end, we have passed on our technical know-how . . ’
to the local workforce while maintaining our operational standards East .ASIa, the Middle Ea,St’ and NOI’thl Africa.
and processes. We will surely replicate the same process of hiring Offering power rental equipment that will oper-
local people in other countries that we are planning to pursue in the ate with different types of fuel such as diesel
. future.” . ’
he 54 MW power plantwill supply up to 150,000 cus- natural gas, or dual-fuel, Altaaga Global is po-
tomers in Yemen which will benefit more than half a ‘B £h il eallaboratin ek the Alt Glob iti dt idlv denl d ide 1
million people in the province of Aden.Altaaga Global ecause of the successiul collaboralion belween the Alidaga tlao- sitioned to rapidly deploy and provide tempo-

: | workforce and the local Yemeni team, the power plants of 11kV ; : : :
h ° a -
ired 95% of the total employees from Yemen and able and 33KV installation werecompleted as per schedule.” According to rary power plant solutions, delivering electric

to deliver the project on time. This is one of the great . ity whenever and wherever it mav be needed
success stories of doing synergy between the government, lo- Feter den.Boogert, GMaf Bu§|ness Developmentof Altaaqa Glo_bal, y y '
Even during summer when it can reach up to 38 degrees Celsius,

cal sormunity and private campany in the power industey. and during Ramadan when we are only ableto work for a short pe-

riod of time, we were able to complete the power project due to our www.altaaqaglobal.com Altaaga Global @
strong operational and streamlined business process.”

Aden, Yemen — Altaaga Global Cat Rental Power, a leading global
power solutions provider, has successfully installed 54 MW power
plant in the province of Aden, Yemen. The Governor and Public
Electricity Corporation (PEC) officials, together with various govern-
ment officials and the Executives of Altaaga Global inaugurated the B
power plant that will provide up to 15% of the province summer elec-
tricitydemand.

W o

| ' About Zahid Group

Zahid Group represents a diverse range of com-
panies, offering comprehensive, customer-cen-
tric solutions in a number of thriving industries.
Some of those include construction; mining; oil
& gas; agriculture; power, electricity & water
generation; material handling; building materi-
als; transportation & logistics; real estate devel-
opment; travel & tourism; waste management &
recycling; and hospitality.
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Governor Wahid Ali Rashid expressed deep gratitude to the Presi-
dent, His Excellency AbdRabbuh Mansur Hadi for the great solution
to the demands and needs of the governorate of Aden,he said “the
President of the Republic of Yemen has spent a lot of time and efforts
to make this power plant into reality. The President has personally
been involved in providing the best solutions for electricity crisis and
urgentlyrespondedto address the situation of electricity.”The Gover-
nor appealed to the citizens of Aden to use the electricity wisely and
be efficient in consuming energy to ensure a sustainable energy and
avoid electric outages.

According to Engineer Khalil Abdul-Malik, Director General of Public
Electricity Corporation (PEC), “This is the fastest power plant ever
built in the history of Yemen. It only took us 23 days from the day

http://www.zahid.com

Visit Our Social Media

Ly i . 5.- Twitter: https://twitter.com/AltaagaGlobal
4 il D Jd' = || Linkedin Group: http://www .linkedin.com/groups/Altaaqa-Global-4875736/about
=t E; G q B Linkedin Company: http://www.linkedin.com/company/altaaqa-global-cat-rental-power
r Wis ’ 1’\;\’1 \ ¢ \ Facebook: http://www.facebook.com/AltaagaGlobal
' ‘ ‘i “[ Google+: https://plus.google.com/103611566876416785980/posts
J - “,.- “"‘_‘w Pinterest: http://pinterest.com/altaaqaglobal/
. =E Youtube: http://www.youtube.com/user/altaaqaglobal
o
V.
Visit Our Blogs
A WordPress: http://altaaqaglobal.wordpress.com/
- B ' Blogger: http://altaaqaglobal.blogspot.ae/
b i ‘ — Tumblr: http://altaaqaglobal.tumblr.com/



http://www.altaaqaglobal.com
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A step-by-step guide
How to kidnap a foreigner in Yemen

Haykal Bafana

e international media

lames Al-Qaeda or Ye-

meni tribesmen for the

recent spate of foreigners

kidnapped in Sana’a. But

what if kidnapping has evolved into

a new business model for ordinary

Yemenis? Here’s how I think kidnap-

ping as a business could be done by
the average Yemeni.

1. Recce all over Sana’a for foreign-
ers who are suitable targets. Avoid
those who are driving around in ar-
mored cars—these will be Western

embassy types who have many guns
to shoot you with.

2. Hadda area is good for “recce”
missions—a high concentration of
Westerners due to the espresso bars
and Western restaurants there. In
fact, hanging out at espresso cafes is
a good way to choose your potential
targets. Do not order “shahi ahmar”
or “bunni"—you reveal yourself as
a “reefi” bumpkin type. You must
speak Italian—order cafe latte (kaa-
fay laa-tay) or cappuccino (kaa-fu-
shi-no).

3. Choose a European target. Kid-
napping Americans are useless, as

the U.S. government will never pay
ransom—they may also drone you
dead instead. But then again, I may
be wrong on this point, as America
has changed—theynowkill their own
citizens in Yemen without charge,
jury or trial. So maybe Americans
are good targets nowadays—just
make sure you have enough food
supplies, as Americans eat a lot.

4. When your target foreigner has
been chosen, it’s time to prepare.
Borrow some guns and a Land Cruis-
er or Vitara, and ask two or three
qat-chewing friends to help you. You
must give them a commission—this

20 August, 2013

is Yemen, after all. You don’t want to
get lots of ransom money and then
get kidnapped by your ex-accomplic-
es for cheating them.

5. Kidnap the target foreigner
from the streets of Sana’a in broad
daylight. The best way to do this is
to overtake the foreigner, suddenly
swerve in and stop your car in front
of his car. Foreigners are different
from Yemenis—they will not pur-
posely slam into your car to teach
you a lesson. Grab and bundle the
target into your car immediately and
drive off. Leave the target’s car—
many have GPS trackers.

6. Do not kidnap at night—power
failures happen all the time and in
darkness, you may kidnap the wrong
target, like a Yemeni sheikh’s son. Re-
member: the goal is to make money
and not to be shot dead on Khamsin
Street by the sheikh’s bodyguards.

7. Very important—always leave a
telltale Al-Qaeda signature during
the kidnapping— for example, you
and your friends can shout, “Allahu
Akbar” three times before driving
off. The police will never investigate
when they think Al-Qaeda did it.

8. Contact the target’s embassy in
Sana’a. Negotiate for tons of U.S. dol-
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lars (new notes, not the old ones— if
not, the “hawala” chaps will stiff
you). At the start, ask for at least $10
million—anything less, and they will
know what a dumb “gabili” you are.

9. Issue a threatening video and
upload to YouTube if the Western
government involved tries to shylock
you.

10. Important—when you get the
ransom, go to Dubai, open a bank
account and join the rest of the Ye-
meni criminals who hide there.

Haykal Bafana is a writer and blog-
ger based in Sanaa.

US encourages democracy in Yemen, then turns deaf ear

Pam Bailey and

Medea Benjamin
Aljazeera.com

First Published August 14
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lowback” is a les-
son the United
States govern-
ment should have
learned in the
mountains of Afghanistan, the
streets of Iraq and the wild terri-
tories of Pakistan: Be careful what
you sow, because you will reap it
tomorrow.

A small delegation of CODEPINK
peace activists travelled to the beau-
tiful country of Yemen in June (and
yes, despite the images in Western
media of a dangerous country over-
run by terrorists, it is a country
rich with culture and a welcoming
population).

We were greeted with some wise
words from Abdul-Ghani Al Iryani,
a political analyst and founder of
Tawq, Yemen’s Democratic Awaken-
ing Movement, “In the fight against
al-Qaeda and the extremism it rep-
resents, we can do it the easy way, by
killing, and thus have to do it again
and again, or the hard way and re-
ally solve the problem. To truly fight
Al-Qaeda and similar groups, we
must deal with the root causes of its
growth - poverty, injustice, lack of
rule of law...and drone strikes.”

That last part - Iryani’s inclusion
of drone strikes as aroot cause of
extremism - seems to be lost on the
[American President Barak] Obama
administration (as it was with the
George W. Bush team). In what has
come to be a trademark, “kill-first-
analyze-later-only-if-challenged”
intervention style, Obama has au-
thorized nine drone strikes on Ye-
meni territory since July 28, in a
kneejerk response to intercepted
Internet “chatter” suggesting an
imminent terrorist attack against
Western targets somewhere in the
world.

To date, 38 individuals labeled
as “suspected militants” have been
assassinated, although U.S. offi-
cials admitted to The Washington
Post that they have “no indication
that senior Al-Qaeda operatives in
Yemen have been killed...It’s too
early to tell whether we've actually
disrupted anything. What the U.S.
government is trying to do here is
to buy time.”

So, basically, the US government
is preemptively retaliating in re-
sponse to a vague threat by infil-
trating another country and killing
people without any certainty of who
they are, whether they are involved
in an internal struggle or trying to
kill Americans, or if their murder
would actually have any effect -
“just to buy time.”

Innocents caught in the crossfire

When we were in Yemen, we met
with many families whose loved
ones were injured or killed by drone
strikes - becoming “collateral dam-
age” as the United States (some-

times with the Yemeni government’s
overt or covert cooperation) killed
anyone suspected of affiliation with
Al-Qaeda, along with their unfortu-
nate companions and neighbors.

Here is just one of the many sto-
ries we heard as we travelled the
country:

It was 9 a.m. on a Tuesday and
Ahmed Abdullah Awadh was at
home with his 26-year-old son,
Majed, in the small village of Ja’ar
in southwestern Yemen. Suddenly,
they heard a loud explosion. The
house of Awadh’s neighbor, a man
he described as “an ordinary taxi
driver,” was hit. Everyone in the
largely residential neighborhood,
including Awadh and his son, ran to
see what happened and help rescue
anyone who was hurt.

The 33-year-old taxi driver was
dead. Fortunately, the rest of his
family had not been at home. Fif-
teen minutes later, as neighbors
were still sorting through the rub-
ble, there was a second strike in the
same spot. This time, with almost
the entire neighborhood concen-
trated in one location, the entire
block was reduced to rubble, about
20 residents were injured and an-
other 14-26 died - including Majed.

“Majed was burned over 50 per-
cent of his body,” recalled Awadh
through an interpreter. “But there
is only an emergency clinic in Ja’ar,
and they said he was too seriously
injured to be treated there. The
nearest hospital is in Aden, and the
main road was closed. It took four
hours to get there. I held him in my
arms while we were driving, and he
kept bleeding. On the third day in
the hospital, at 2:30 a.m., Majed’s
heart stopped, and he died.”

Was the taxi driver actually af-
filiated with Al-Qaeda? Awadh and
his fellow residents - and American
citizens, whose taxpayer dollars pay
for this warfare - will never be told.
They were merely left to pick up the
pieces.

Faisal Bin Ali Jaber, a Yemeni
engineer who lost his cousin and
brother-in-law in a drone strike in
August 2012, published an open let-
ter to President Obama and Yemeni
President [Abdu Rabu Mansour]
Hadi. He wrote that his brother-in-
law was an imam who had strongly
and publicly opposed Al-Qaeda and
that his cousin was a policeman.
“Our town was no battlefield,” he
said.

“We had no warning. Our local
police were never asked to make
any arrest. Your silence in the face
of these injustices only makes mat-
ters worse. If the strike was a mis-
take, the family - like all wrongly
bereaved families of this secret air
war - deserve a formal apology.
To this day I wish no vengeance
against the United States or Yemeni
governments. But not everyone in
Yemen feels the same. Every dead
innocent swells the ranks of those
you are fighting.”

Even when drone targets are con-

firmed affiliates of AQAP (Al-Qae-
da in the Arabian Peninsula), we
were told that in most cases they
could have been easily arrested and
brought to trial, if the political will
existed. And then there is the fact
that many of the so-called “targets”
have no possibility, or intent, of
harming Americans.

One family we met told us that
their 17-year-old son had been im-
prisoned on a trumped-up charge
by former Yemeni dictator Ali Ab-
dullah Saleh, kept in a tiny cell and
terribly abused. While in prison,
he met some members of Al-Qaeda
and decided to join them in anger at
his government - not at the United
States. Yet, he soon became fodder
for U.S. drones.

Should the United States be free
to intervene in Yemen, a country
with which it is not at war and as-
sassinate anyone it suspects of ter-
rorist affiliations, along with the
unlucky individuals who happen to
be around them?

Yemen’s interim President Hadi
seems to think so, since he has given
his consent to President Obama. But
the Yemeni pecple have answered
that question with a resounding
“No.” Although their brave, historic
vote was only reported in interna-
tional media such as Al-Jazeera
and Press TV, a nearly unanimous
majority of the 565 participants in
Yemen’s multi-party National Dia-
logue Conference (NDC) - the grand
effort to bridge the many internal
divides and reach consensus on the
future for the country - voted last
month to criminalize drone strikes
and all other forms of extra-judi-
cial killings. Under the governing
rules of the NDC, once the confer-
ence completes its work in about a
month’s time and a new constitution
is drafted, the ban against drones is
required to become law.

There are many critics ofthe NDC,
but it is the most democratic institu-
tion that exists in Yemen right now,
and as such has been embraced by
the United Nations, the Gulf states
and Western nations - including
the United States. However, despite
the vote against drones, the attacks
continue.

“Despite all of Washington’s re-
cent commitments and actions in
supporting the transition towards
democratic elections in Yemen, the
drones did nothing but edge Ye-
menis in the opposite direction,”
wrote Farea al-Muslimi, a Yemeni
youth activist, in The Independent
[a British newspaper] . “More than
10 million Yemenis remain in need
of humanitarian assistance, but
none of that is on the tongues of pol-
icymakers in the West...Instead, the
U.S. suddenly, via the drones, sent a
message that (the NDC) and its del-
egates are much less important, and
would be taken less seriously, than
the shared enemy of both Yemenis
and the U.S. —Al-Qaeda.”

There are other ways to ensure
our national security, although it

requires more thought and effort in
the short term: 1) Improve the qual-
ity of our intelligence, and work
with the Yemeni government to ar-
rest and try those individuals who
are actually linked to terrorist plots
against the United States. Leave ac-
tion against those who have inter-
nal disputes to Yemen. Yes, that was
difficult in the past when the coun-
try was led by former President
Saleh, who tried to [work] with both
the United States and Al-Qaeda.
But, there is a new order now and
Yemen deserves the chance to act
as a sovereign body. If not, we will

delegitimize an already weak gov-
ernment in the eyes of its people
- a consequence that will carry its
own blowback. 2) Increase our non-
military aid to Yemen to focus on
the root causes of social discontent
- poverty and lack of employment
opportunities high among them.

If the United States truly supports
and wants to encourage democ-
racy as every American politician
claims, then it is time to put our
“money where our mouth is.” Real
political leadership and courage re-
quires listening to and respecting
the voice of the people, not just the

transitional leaders, most of whom
are hold-overs from the old regime
and firmly in our orbit. Let’s give
them a chance to run their own
country.

Pam Bailey is a freelance journal-
ist and activist. They travelled to
Yemen in June, in part to interview

families impacted by American

drone strikes.

Medea Benjamin is co-founder of
Global Exchange and Codepink:
Women for Peace.

VACANCY ADVERTISEMENT

The World Bank office in Sana‘a is looking for a skilled and experienced Civil Engineer who should ideally
hold an Advanced Degree (Masters or higher) in Road or Transport Engineering and with not less than 8
years of experience, to fill the position of Sr. Highway Engineer in the Transport Sector.

Job Description and Accountabilities:

Desired Skills/Competencies:

partners.

PPP.

«  Provide technical and engineering input to transport activities in the region (mostly road sector projects),
mostly in Yemen, but also in other countries of the region.

+  Help to ensure that road and other transport infrastructure projects are prepared and implemented in line
with the Bank's safeguards policies and procedures. Participate in quality control for road related operations.
Interface with procurement staff on procurement related issues.

«  Provide professional input with respect to formulating road sector strategies and policies.

+  After some time, manage projects within the Bank’s transport portfolio in MNA.

+  Help to develop capacity in the Governments’ implementing entities to plan, develop and manage road trans-
port networks under their jurisdiction.

«  Work in teams in other sector units with roads components in projects, enhance the quality of project design,
implementation and supervision, and related technical assistance components.

+  Collaborate with (and support) project implementing entities in Yemen and other countries.

+  Support formulation and implementation of institutional reforms and capacity building initiatives in the road
sector in cooperation with responsible agencies and other partners at country level.

+  For projects for which appointed as Task Team Leader, manage fiduciary and other corporate safeguards
responsibilities including procurement, and ensuring compliance with the Bank guidelines and the provisions
of the legal and financing agreements.

«  Proven knowledge of road/transport infrastructure engineering and economics, including assessment of trans-
port operations and costs, and an appreciation of social and environmental requirements would be valued.

+  Demonstrated project/program management skills, aptitude to lead teams, and ability to promote client/ben-
eficiary participation to ensure implementation and long-term sustainability of project/programs. This must
be demonstrated by the candidate’s senior management position level in governmental or large private sec-
tor organizations. High degree of dynamism and self-motivation, as well as the ability to work with minimal
supervision. Experience of working on similar programs financed by the World Bank or other development

«  Experience in modern road engineering methodologies and options for civil works contracting, including
«  Experience in working in a context of fragility, conflict and violence, including polarization of state-society rela-
tions, diminished client capacity, relevance of partnerships, etc.

« ltis essential that the candidate is fully fluent in English and Arabic. Must be able to write reports in English.

Interested candidates should apply via the World Bank site www.worldbank.org/jobs section: “employment

opportunities” job number 131907, where you can find full particulars on the vacancy. Closing date for this
job is August 31, 2013. Only short-listed candidates will be contacted.
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Ancient practice continues to
offer popular medical alternative

Cupping therapists say
they lack the status and
respect afforded to phy-
sicians

Story and photo by
Ali Abulohoom

m Mohammed waits

her turn at the Al-

Shifa Cupping Ther-

apy Clinic in Sana’a

where she hopes to
find relief for the joint paint she’s
been experiencing for the past five
years.

In her 50s, Um Mohammed leans
on her 20-year-old son, Moham-
med. She limits her movements
to manage the pain. She turned to

cupping after a long journey with
conventional medicine and drugs,
which offered her little respite, she
says. The therapy grants her relief
from the pain, even if it’s tempo-
rary.

“After the disappointment I ex-
perienced at hospitals, I started
cupping therapy. It offers relief, but
I have to come regularly,” Um Mo-
hammed said.

Cupping therapy is a form of an-
cient Chinese medicine that has en-
joyed popularity around the world.
The practice was first documented
in the teachings of the Prophet
Mohammed, who recommended it
to his followers in 28 hadiths, ac-
cording to religious scholars. Pro-
ponents of the therapy believe that
improved blood flow can promote
healing and relieve pain. It is of-
ten used to treat rheumatism, mi-

graines and high blood pressure.

Cupping is mostly performed
on the back, neck and shoulders.
The practice can be dry or wet—
which involves bleeding the patient
through small incisions and then
suctioning the blood out through
cupping equipment.

Cupping clinics are spreading
throughout the capital city, and
many are unlicensed. Physicians
worry about the therapy, saying
those behind the practice have no
degrees or certifications.

“This is an inherited profession,
passed down from one generation
to another. [I'm] afraid that these
people are not committed to the
medical standards necessary for
[treating people],” said Dr. Mahir
Hamoud of Al Thwara hospital, a
large government-run facility.

In the Al-Shifa Clinic, Um Mo-
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Tender Invitation

The Community Livelihoods Project (CLP) is a USAID-funded project in Yemen managed by Creative

In coordination with the Ministry of Education (MOE), CLP is responsible for the following works:

Printing student book,Part#1

289,959 copies

CLP is inviting qualified Companies specializing in these areas to submit offers.

'YEMEN

COMMUNITY LIVELIHOODS PROJECT (CLP) I

Interested companies are invited to contact CLP at the address below to request a copy of the RFQ
(specifying in your request the tender name) during the period: Aug 20, 2013 thru Thursday, Aug 22, 2013
03:00pm to receive the complete Tender Documents.

CLP email: proc@clp-yemen.com
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Make your next move to Baker Hughes

=
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Find out more about us at:

Operating in more than 80 countries and employing over 58,000

people, leading oilfield services company Baker Hughes offers

a wide range of opportunities for experienced people in our

Middle East field operations. Join us and work with leading edge
technology; belong to a diverse, inspiring team, and benefit from
ongoing training, with fast career advancement potential.

Current opportunities in Yemen include:

R&M Operator — Ref 1311965

ALS Field Specialist / Field Supervisor — Ref 1311967

WLE Field Operator — Ref 1311968
WLE Field Operators — Ref 1310194

WLE Assembly, Maintenance &

Overhaul Mechanic — Ref 1310193
Assembly, Maintenance & Overhaul Mechanic — Ref 1311969

£1SbE poNasay SBR[y BIEI0d0uY SIGOH 23eg EL0Z &

bakerhughes.com

How to apply
> Visit bakerhughes.com/careers

> Enter the reference number you
are interested in

> Apply Now!

Make your next move to Baker Hughes.

AL
BAKER
HUGHES

Baker Hughes is an equal opportunities employer

hammed moans in the pain as she
waits for treatment. She brings her
own medical equipment to avoid
contaminated cups or scalpels.
Cupping equipment is available at
pharmacies and patients are en-
couraged by conventional medical
practitioners not to rely on shared
equipment.

Licensed professionals criticize
many cupping clinics hygienic
practices.

Dr. Mohammed Mahdi, a sur-
geon at the privately-run Al Sahwa
hospital, told the Yemen Times that
clinics typically use only disinfec-
tant and hot water—these measures
are not enough to properly sterilize
equipment, Mahdi said.

“The sterilization machine is
costly and no cupping clinic can af-
ford it,” he added.

While cupping has been prac-
ticed in Yemen for generations, its
origins in the country are unclear,
but ancient civilizations including
the Egyptians, Greeks and Romans
also practiced cupping.

Even though the technique and
its practitioners have a presumed
long history in Yemen, those who
perform the therapy are not afford-
ed any of the social status or pres-
tige associated with conventional
medical practitioners.

There are unofficially four tradi-
tional social class categories that
people will often identify in Yemen.
They date back to before the rule of
the imam and although more fluid
today and disappearing, people still
say historic class divisions carry
over, stigmatizing certain profes-
sions. The first class of people are
the Sayyidi's—those who trace their
descent from the Prophet. People in
this class often hold religious posi-
tions or positions in the judiciary.
Next on the social hierarchy are
the tribes, many of whom have sig-
nificant amounts of regional con-
trol and autonomy. Following the
tribes is the merchant class, which

The equipment used for the therapy come in all sorts of differ-
ent materials and sizes. Larger cups are usually used on the
back and smaller ones on the head and neck.

includes butchers, barbers and veg-
etable sellers. At the bottom of the
ladder are the marginalized Mu-
hamasheen, or Akhdam (servants)
as they’re often referred to.

Cupping therapists belong to the
third class and are considered blue
collar workers. Sociologist Mo-
hammed Al-Dabali told the Yemen
Times that cupping is considered a
low service job and has traditionally
been looked down upon. Attitudes
are beginning to shift, however.

“The attitude towards cupping
specialists is starting to change be-
cause of the spread of free-market
ideas, which link a person’s value
with their productivity,” Al-Dabali
said.

Cupping therapists face so much
stigma that in some governorates,
it’s difficult for them to find part-
ners for marriage.

Dhamar governorate native Mo-
hammed Kabood said that his re-
gion looks down on cupping spe-
cialists to the extent that marrying
one is out of the question.

“Perhaps the isolation from more
urban areas reinforces these views,
whereas outside the villages cup-
ping therapists are considered
specialists and are afforded more
respect,” Kabood said.

Twenty-five year old Moham-
med Sanhoob has been a cupping
therapist for years. His father was

a cupping therapist and Sanhoob
followed in his footsteps. Despite
offering an in demand service for
society, people still look at him as
though her were inferior, he says.

“Generation by generation, we’ve
been prohibited from marrying
into many non-cupping families
because of our profession,” San-
hoob said.

When Sanhoob moved to Sana’a
and saw the number of cupping
clinics, he felt an intense pride in
himself and his profession. A Sana’a
resident is more likely to value him
and treat him as a physician, unlike
his village’s residents, he says.

Sheikh Yahia Al-Barti of Ibb gov-
ernorate told the Yemen Times that
not all Yemenis adhere to the strict
class categories.

“The southern governorates are
[more] free from such class at-
titudes. These beliefs are [more]
deeply-rooted in the tribal north-
ern governorates, however,” Al-
Barti said.

As cupping clinics continue to
spread and Yemen changes with
the rest of the world, the social
categories which have historically
boxed in citizens may begin to un-
ravel. However, their popularity
and spread in the capital means
globalization and modern technol-
ogies have not yet done away with
ancient alternative medicine.
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(ATh) seeks a job. 735694439 company or a factory. 733576664 (A
(7)) Job Seekers ; ; i Y Z
S =& »  Male, bachelor in press and »  Recycling of papers and plastics L

FIVE STAR LOGISTICS CO LTD

media, good written and spoken
English, computer literate, seeks

to work only in the aftrnoon. Aden,
735869554 N

»  Bachelor degree in English,
expeience in teaching and dealing
with different levels. Ready for
tutions, low rate and excellent
teaching. 713481271. »

»  Bachelor in English. Diploma in
computer, experience in
marketing, seking a job in a

consultant for training workshop of
almost 20 kinds of products.
711701322

Excellent English, logistic and
operation experiences,
administrative skills, internet skills.
esaamhamadi@gmail.com,
739882744

Maged Mohammed, Dental
Technician-experience for 8years,
Diploma of technical conditioning
& cooling, Connect:773899026 /

700215989 N
) rorione

»  Rainbow school is seeking female
teachers for Maths, English and
Science for elementary grades. 4
Should have Fauclty of Education
Bachelor's, experience not less
thn 2 years, fluent in English.
733811430, 424433, 414026

»  Sanal Venugopal, B. Com
graduate, one year work
experience in banking industry.
737436520

»  Specialized tutor able to give
private lessons in Marths, Arabic,
English and Science for 4-9
classes state's school.
734680597.

» A teacher of math, physics,
chemistry and biology in English

»  Abdulmalik Marsh Al-Nageeb has
lost his passport No. 04861865. If
found, kindly call 711055811 or
772249199

»  Guitar Coaching. Like to learn
music? Interested in playing guitar
than listening? Like to add music
to your life? Please contact t_
johnyy@hotmail.com. Mobile
734255088

INTERNATIONAL FREIGHT FORWARDER

WEEKLY LCL SERVICES FROM INDIA/CHINA/ EUROPE /JEBEL ALI
TO HODEIDAH AND ADEN PORTS ON VERY COMPETITIVE RATES.

OUR SERVICES: AIR/SEA FREIGHT IMPORT/EXPORT , CUSTOMS
CLEARANCE, LAND TRANSPORTATION, INTERNATIONAL DOOR TO
DOOR SERVICES, PACKING & WAREHOUSING, PROJECT CARGO
HANDLING, DOCUMENTATION, PROCESSING OF EXEMPTION/
EXCLUSIVE IMPORT PERMITS, HANDLING OF CHARTER
AIRCRAFT.

o

(@

o
AN

Tel:00967-1-450238/239 Fax: 00967-1-450894
Aden: 00967-2-221994 Fax: 00967-2-221995
EMAIL: SALES@FSTARLOGISTICS.COM
INFO@FSTARLOGISTICS.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.FSTARLOGISTICS.COM
WORLDWIDE LOGISTIC SOLUTIONS

A house for rent in Haddah city, 4
bedrooms, 2 bathrooms, large
kitchen, large hall. 737194467

For rent: Fully Furnished Luxury
apartment in Hadda City: 3 bed
rooms, Mafraj, Dining and sitting
hall + interner and battery charger
(Generator): 1500 $ (Negotiable)
Contact: 733416400
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[ Coupon for Free Classified Ads. |
} (All Personal Ads All Free of Cost) }
| . | Easy Intermediate Difficult
| OFor Sale TRequired | e e
. 8 6 5 9 7 2 1 6 8
| TAvailable TFor Lease |
| . . | 1 2 7 1 6 4 7 2 -
| TFor Hire/Rent TJob Require | ,
. 4 9 8 6 2 5 3 9 9 3
| DISituation Vacant TO0thers |
| | 5 7 8 4 8 7 5 1 9
I Details: I 2 4 1 5 9 4|2 1 4
| | 9 5 6 3 5 6 8 6
I | 1 4 3 6 5 9 8 5 2 7
| | 8 1 7 6 1 7 3 511
| | 3|5 2 4 8 |6 4 2 5
I ! +¥PO SSaYy
{ Contact Address: } il
I | ! 1B0E
I | vlelalelclolols s
| | AREEE R 61 S|P
| Please cut this coupon and send it to | ‘ . ,
| Yemen Times | . —
l Fax: 268276 or P.O. Box 2579 - Sana’a | myopns
| For more info. call 268661/2/3 | White plays and wins in the 3rd move
S |
CAC Bank 01 563813 Movenpick Hotel 01 546666 Juniors’ Oasis kindergarten .
Al-Amal Bank 01-449731 COURIERS Fax: 01 546000 Telfax :01- 440840 - Mobile734522225 MINISTRIES
Qatar International Bank  01-517544 Fed Sheba Hotel 01 272372 Sana’a International School Tel: 01 370191/2
Yemeni Bank for Reconstruction s Relax-Inn Hotel 01 449871 Fax 370193 Presidency 01-290200
and Development 01-271601 Sana’a 01 440 170 Aden 02 245 626 Gulf Tourist Hotel and Suits 01-630494 International Turkish Schools  01-419330-1. Prime Minister 01-490 800
Saba'a Islamic Bank 01-286506 Hodiadh 03 226 975 Taiz 04 205 780 Mercure Hotel 01-212544 737999199 Ministry of Public Works and Highways
Calyon Bank 01-274371 Shammar Hotel 01-418546 Taiz 205593 01-545132
- United Bank Limited 01-407540 uUsp 01-416751 Universal Hotels 01-440305/7-14 Ministry of Awgaf and Guidance 01-274439
N b r CAC Islamic Bank 01-538901 DHL 01 441096/7/8 Shahran Hotel 01-417320 Al-Majd Yemen School Tel: 206159 Ministry of Higher Education and Scientific
u m e s Yemen and Kuwait Bank Manarat Schools 01-410011 Research 01-535031
for Trade and Investment 01-209451 ’ Ministry of Fisheries 01-268583
FREIGHT FORWARDERS INSURANCE COMPANIES - Ministry of Culture 01-274640
Electricity problems 177, Emergency Police CAR RENTAL SUPERMARKET v Ministry of Civil Service and Insurance
199, Fire Brigade 191 ,Water Problems 171, Al-Nada Center for General Services UNITED INSURANCE Tel: 01/555 555 01-294579
Telephone enquires 118. Accident (Traffic) 194, Budget Tel: 01 309618 / Tel: 967 1 431339 Al-Jandul Supermarket. 01-422610 Ministry of Defence 01-276404
Foreign Affairs, 202544/7. Interior Affairs 506372 Fax: 431340 Free Number: 800 55 55 Happy Land supermarket 01-444424 Ministry of Agriculture and Irrigation
252701/7. Immigration 250761/3. Inter-City Fax: 01240958 alnada2 @yemen.net.ye 01-282963
Bus Co. 262111/3, Ministry of Communication Europe Car Tel: 01 270751 M&M Logistics & Aviation Services Al-Watania Insurance (Y.S.C.) ’ Ministry of Social Affairs and Labour
325110/1/2/3, Radio Station 282061, Tourism Fax: 01 270804 01 531221/531231 Sana’a 272713/874  Aden: 243490-242476 TRANSLATIONS 01-262809
254032, TV Station 332001/2. Red Crescent Hartz Sana'a: 01 440309 Al-Nasim Cargo Forwarders 407905 Taiz 250029 Hodeidah 219941/4/6 Ministry of Legal Affairs 01-402213

203131/3, Tel-Yemen 7522202, Y.net 7522227

__ AIRLINES

278668/283082
273452/275061

Continental Airline
Egypt Air

Gulf Air

440922

Qatar Air ways
Royal Jordanian
01 446064/5/8

%%Yemen Gulf Bank  Tel. 967-1-260823
Fax:260824
02 - 270347
fax 02 - 237824
Shamil Bank of Yemen & Bahrain
Tel. 264775,

Fax: 506038, Tel.506030/5

264702.
Fax. 264703,
503350
Yemeni Banks:
Central Bank 274314/1
Yemen Commercial Bank Tel: 01 277224
Fax: 277291

International Bank of Yemen 01 407030
Arab Bank 01 276585/2

Aden: 02 245625

CAR SHOWROOMS
& SPARE PARTS

FORD/HYUNDAI 267791

MERCEDES-BENZ 01 - 330080

NISSAN Hodeidah: 200150/49
Sana’a: 400269

OPEL / GM 203075

SUZUKI 02 - 346000

TOYOTA 445362/3

COMPUTER EDUCATION
AND INSTITUTES
Aden: 02-237199
Infinit Education 01-444553
NIIT Quality Computer Education207025/26

British Institute for languages & Computer
266222 - Fax: 514755

Computer Education

YALI 01-448039
ALTI 01-274221
Exceed 01-537871
MALI 01-441036
Horizon 01-448573

01 444550/441935
01-447126

World Link
YEMPAC Cargo

Mas Fright International 01-429671
Mareb Travel and Tourism - Cargo Division
01-441126

Sas Cargo Services
01-472192/3
World Shipping

HOSPITALS

600000/602008
Fax. 601889
01 274286/87
01 412981
01 246967/66
01-424765
01-444936
01-500000
01-283283

01 260746 / 267929

Modern German Hospital
E-mail:felixpene@hotmail .com
Al-Jumhury Hospital

Hadda Hospital

Al-Thawra Hospital

Al-Junaid Hospital

Al-Ahli Modern Hospital
Science and Technology Hospital
Al-Kuwait Hospital
Sadui-German Hospital

Azal Hospital 01-200000

L'AZURDE suites hotel
Versailles Hotel

01-432020/30/40
01-425970/1/2

Sheraton Hotel 01 237500

Sana’a: 206129/8/13
Aden: 255668
Taiz:240927/34
Hodeidah: 219545/8

Marib Insurance

Yemen Islamic Insurance Co. Sana’'a 284193,

5 lines, Taiz: 258881, Aden. 244280

Yemen Insurance company Sana'a: 272806/

272962/43.  Aden: 247617
Taiz: 250345, Mukalla: 304292,
Hodeidah: 261839/17

01-214093
01-448340/1/2
Fax: 448339

RESTAURANT

Al-Shaibani Restaurants Super Deluxe
Tel: 01 505290
01 266375
Fax:01 267619

SCHOOLS

Rainbow Pre-School Tel: 414026 / 424433

Aman Insurance

Yemeni Qatari Insurance

Urwa Wautqga Int. Auth. Trans. Arabic-English-
French -German-Russian-Italian- Spanish-
Polish-Dutch- Iranian-Turkish-Eriterca-

Ambharic. Tel: 01-240515

Sky Travel & Tourism 01-535080/83

02-221270

Falcon Holidays 444118
Falcon Business Center 446250
Al-Nasim Travel 270750
Universal Business Travel Center 441158/9/60
Qadas Fly 01-280777

UNIVERSITIES

American World University. Rep.
Tel. 01 - 53570(
733061203 Fax: 535

University of Applied and Social Science

by IS academy ) -
702

Sana’a: 412442 Fax: 412441,
Aden: 234533 / 234960
Queen rwa University Tel: 449971/2

Sana’a University Tel: 250553/4/5
Alandalus University Tel:675567

Fax:675885

Ministry of Public Health and Population

01-252211
Ministry of Youth and Sports 01-472913
Ministry of Industry and Trade 01-235462
Ministry of Justice 01-236512
Ministry of Tourism 01-220050
Ministry of Expatriates 01-402254
Ministry of Petroleum and Minerals

01-202309
Ministry of Internal Affairs 01-289577
Ministry of Transport 01-260900
Ministry of Human Rights O1-444831
Ministry of Communications and
Information Technology 01-331460
Ministry of Local Administration  01-227242
Ministry of Information 01-274008
Ministry of Planning and
International Cooperation 01-250101

01-252732
01-537914
01-332701

01-260365

Ministry of Education
Ministry of Foreign Affairs
Minisiry of the Interior
Ministry of Finance
Ministry of Transportation 222¢
Ministry of Water and Environment
01-418289

Ministry of Electricity 01-326196

To have your number listed please
contact: 268661 - Fax: 268276
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ASHIBAMI AGENCIES
Loluivl L ulsg

Headquarters: 530000, 206713
Hadda branch: 429555, 414503
E-mail: ashibami@y.net.ye
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LG Air Conditioners
TITAN

SALEM MOHAMMAD SHAMMAKH GROUP

SANA A- ~514621/821 264095 - 225646 - Iy (P
ADEN: 252480 - 234377 HUDEIDA: 205918 - 205903 F : e
TAIZ:251440 MOKALA: 326044 Dl o

WHOLESALE: 01/514697
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Whatever the customer size,
NEC have the right system
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Sy NEC
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ABO MISKA ENTERPRISE
For Trading & Contracting

Tel: 01 234405, 01 230244, Fax: 01 234408
Email: hisham@abomiska.com

LGCGG

21,1 1A

o o oo

) B 5

Generating sets from 1 Kva to 3000 Kva

Air Compressor ( industrial) industrial)

IVECO oo Kuhota

SC0,

com |

Www . iaesco . & Perkins

+ Global power projects (from 1m to 30 m)

Industrial generating sets + Power Rent
« Marine generating sets * Construction machines
* Gas generating sets * Water pumps
« Tower lights * Bearings (Automotive and

Sana’a 60 St. in front of city max Web site:www.iaesco.com Email: info@iaesco.com

Tel: +967-1-450551/2 Fax:+967-1-450553 - Direet Tel: 777-308-600 Branches Hodaidah Tel:03/230151 Soon: Taiz & Aden
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